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A, Yes.

Q. Okay. And you're one of the recipients
here, correct?
That's correct.
And Rob English, is he on your list?
No, he's not.

* Okay. Whexe did he fit in?

T~ T -

I belleve he was a regular attendee to
some of che nthEr meetings that -~ that Ford has.

0. Was he -- Was there zome other
investigative team that was working while you were
working on thig problem, on thie problem?

A. Not that I'm awaze af.

Q. All right. This is -- leooks 1lke it's toO
you from Mr. Mastera. Am I reading chat right?

A, That's correct,

2. Frad, we need an internal meeting with you

and your appropriats engineers along wlth AVT-EESE

‘langinears, Englieh -~ 1g that aregory?

A. it eould be,

Q. Okay. .Iu thit -- Was that perscn on your
Lean?
| a. No, he was.nut.

Q. And Mr. Maaters, to consolidate, would --

I'nm aorry. Meating would coneclidate AVT-EESE
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Position per role that brake pressure switch plays
in regards to ﬁnasible rocot cause for the Town Car
undexr hood fires. Did I read that right?

A. That appears to be what's written.

Q. And was there, in fact, a maeting that was
held either February 3rd ox Pebruary 4th to
consclidate AVT-EESE position for the role that the
brake presaufe switch would play in regardzs tao a
pdaéihle rost sauge?

A. I don't recall that.

0. Okay. Do yn; have recollaection cne way or
the other whether suech a mesting occurred?

A, No, I don't.

Q. At this point 1in time, February 3rd, 13989,
was it the AVT-EESE position that the brake pressure
switch was a likely candldate of the causs of these
firea? _

A. i beliave that AVI-RESE's pnsi;ion Eor the
brake prasggre swlitch was that the -- ic was a
posaible cause of these firee based on the NHTSA
inguiry.

q. Ckay. Can you tell me anybthing further
that you reecall ahnuf Any mmeting to consclidate the
ﬁonitiun on the brake pressure awitch held on or

about February 3rd or ath?

ARA COURT REPORTERS 712 466-9325
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A Ne, I can't,
iExhibit Ho. 24 marked.)

G. Okay. I hand you what's been marked ag
Exhibit ¢ -- 24. I'm sorry. Thia looksa like zan
E-Mail from Charlie Douglas to some paopls at Texas
Instruments and lt ia ipcluding an E-Mall frem
somebody by the name evey Rob Sharpe? Do you sce
that?

A, ¥Yee, I do.

G; Do you recall attending a mseating con
February the 4th with Réh Sharpe and othera at Ford

to discuss the Lincoln Town Car fire imasue?

A. Not ppecifically.

o. .Da you have notres of that meaeting?

“Aa. I den't believe that I do.

a. Do you know if anyone tock nctea of the
meeting?

a. It'aﬁpe;rq :hﬁt'spﬁeﬂddy did.

Q. ARll right. HI.-Sh;Ipﬁ tuck'nqtes?

A That's corrmsct.

Q. Have fou reviawed thie E-Maill in

preparation for your deposition?
A. I think I have looked at this since T.I.
produced it, but I haven't lockaed at it specificall

fﬁr iﬂfurmatiun on ic.

Y
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Q. Who ie Paul Stckes? Dpid he actend the
maeting?

A According to this E-Mail he did.

. s there anybody who'm liasted as the

attendees that you believe did1nat atcend?

A. I have no raagon te bsliave gne way or
ancther.

Q. QOkay. Mr. Douglas reports that the issue
13 aone of Ford'es top prioritiea and ie galning
executlive level axposure. Was that correct as of
Fobruary 5th, 19997

A. That'e correct.

. Ford dees not have a root cause te reply
to_tha NHTSA inquiry. Was that correct as of
Fabruary 5Sth, 19957

A, That'a correct,

Q. Strong perception that the f£ires have
a;iginatad at tha-ﬁrenaura switqh, bhased on NHETSA's
internal investigation, rapu;ta fron insurance -
invastigators, incident t Memphis whars the vehicle
fire gtarted in front of ﬁha machanic and the
machanic noted that the switch was "burning" {awitch
was replacad ind vuhicla returned Lo awner.- sama
awitch was analyzed in TI-A). I think that means

Attlabora. So far, 1s that coxrrect?

AAA COURT REPORTERZ 713 466-9325
8597 Joneg Road, No. 363, Houston, Texas 77065
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A. It sounds carrect, yeas.

Q. - Okay. Ford stated that the pressure
should be considered "guilty" until proven
innocence -- innocent. Ia that corract? That was
the attitude at Feoxd ar this tine?

A, Yes. 1

Q. To this point T.I. has bean viewed as
"cooperative”™ but not "proactive®. Ford 1s lecoking
for our help as they consider T.I. the experts in
regards te the swishes {gic.) -- switch isaues. Did
he repeort that carractlyf

A, I balleve 50, Yasg.

Q. All right. Ford ie ¢oncerned that in
absmsnce of the root cauae rasponse to NETSA, NHTSA
will pick the brake pressure switch and demand that

all Town Cars witkh cruise centrol be grounded or

lrecalied. 0id he report that corract?

A. 1 Yes, slir.

c. Without a root cause, containment action
is unclear. Did he report that corractly?

a. That's correct.

Q. ﬁkay. Foeeible cﬂnéainment incliudes:
disengage cruiaa!apeéd eontrel epticn {(high impact
ko tﬁe customar}. Did he report that cdrractly?

MR. FEENEY: Wait a minute. Time

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-3328 4
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jout. I don't mind sentence by sentence or ecme

thought by thought, but let'a -- lec's try to get a
whole sentence anyway on the guestion. All fight?

Q. Did he report that Eurrectly?

MR. FEENEY: I .obj]ect to the form of
the questien. I think it's improper to break up
sentences and phrases in that feshion.

Q. 0id he reﬁnrt thar correctly, Mr. Porter?

A. Disengaging spaed control from the
vehiclas would be a high negative-impact Lo ecustomer
geatlsfactlon, that i3 Torreck.

0. If I undar;tand what he's Baying is, he'a
saying thare ware pome containment options that were
discussed at this mesting that he attended. Is that
correck, to Lhe best of your racﬁllnctiﬂn?

A. I£f the brake pregoure awltch was indeed
the cause of the firea, those would be
pogsibllities, yes.

Q. Okay. And -- And he says, no. 2: Rewire
the brake switch to an ilgnition faad; pid he repart
that cnrrectly,.fram your undarataﬁding of what

occuryed at the meeting?

A. If that were possible, that wan sonething
that -- that was dlascuaged.
Q. - oOkay. You den't dispute that? That is an

. AAA COURT REPDRTERS 713 466-9325
9587 Jeonea Road, Mo, 363, Houskton, Texas 77065
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raccurate depicticon of what was discusee=ed, correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. Ckay. How would rewiring the braké Ewitch
to an ignition feed be a peossible containment?
Explain that to me.

F- Given a brake switch that we now know had
brake fluid leaking inte it that weould cauee a fire,
running the wire to through the ignition awitch
would remove the peried ;f time from when the switch
could catch fire to -- of when the vehicle wag off
to only when the vehicia was running.

e. Okay. And that was one of the possible
containments that waa'disuuaaed at thisa meeting held

on February 5th?

A. Correck.
Q. Okay. It was cunfirmgd'hy the cruise
control -- I'm sorry. Let me continue. It was

confirmed Ey the cruise control group that there is
nﬁ nacesaity to have the brake switch "hot® (12
vnltﬁ] at all times. Did he report that correctly?

- A, I'm not aura .that he did.

Q. Ckay. Well, Paul Stokes was the
individual at the mestling, correct?

a. That}s correckt.

c. You don't have any notes of the meeting,

AAR COURT REPORTERS 713 466-%325
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do you, Mr. Porter?

A, No, 1 do not,

Q. ckay. Everything I've read so far.haa
been acgcurate, hasn't 1t, Mr. Porter?

A. ﬁverything you have read so far has been
accurate as far ag speculation of what PFard might do
if the NHETSA said we had to do sometbhing to the
brake presgure switch. At that point in time we did

not know what the brake pressura switch aifuaticn

wag,
Q. Are you finiaheh?
A, Yes.
Q. Iz it your sworn testimony that at thia

meating Ford's Crulise CantrullGraup indicatad
ecmathing cther than Mr. Douglasa has written --
Mr. Sharpe has written in this E-Mail?
| A. It 18 my sworn teatimony that the

cryige -- Epaagd Control Group was congiatent in
their concerns of any effort that would take the
brake -- brake desactivaticon pwitch out of the
gircuit that waas the same as the brake onfoff
Bwitch.

Q. Was 1t confirmed by Mr. Stokes at Fhis
maeting that there'sm no necegeity to have tha brake

switch hot, 12 volks at all timea?

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-5315 -
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Hﬁ. FEENFY: Asked and anawered.
Q- Did he say that at the meeting, sir?
MR. FEENEY: Asked and answered.
A I den't know.
Q. You don't have a recollection one way or
the other, do you, Mr. Porter?
A. No, I do not.
Q. ¥You would defer teo thess notes, wouldn't
you, Mr. Porter?
MR. FEE?E?: Objection. That's
not -- The notes deon't even guote anythiné. Object
to form.
MR. MAYER:  And he's answered the

guestion.
MR. FEENEY: And he's anewered the
guepticon. Thrﬁe times he's anawered this gqueation.
Q. ?nu would defer to these notes, wouldn't
you, Mr. Porter?
| A. No, airx.
Q. Why natc?
A, Thews don't identify who said anything.
g. Well, do you have any baaia to dispute
thalb Ford'a Cruise Contrsal Group tested -- stated at

thie meating there was no necessity to have the

brake switch hot at all times cgn th;a dates at thia

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 4&€6-3325
9597 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Texaa 77065
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Jmeercing?
MR. FEENEY: Objection. Asked and
amendments.
Q. Do you have any bapgis to diapute that?
MR. FEENEY: Aaﬁed and answered.
A. That was not consistent with thelr other
communications.
Q. Do you ha?e any basis to dispute at this

meeting, this what happened?
ME., FEENEY: 0Objectlion.
g. That's all I'm-asking. |
MR. FEENEY: Objection. Asked and
answered.
A My basia 1p that that information is not
consistent with néher communications from thkat
gnaup.l

Q. What other communications fyem that group

|were not consistent with the Fact that there wae ne

nacagsity to have the brake switch hot at all times?
A. During team meatingse the -- whan acked
about the brake pressura awitch, it was reiterated
aver and over agaln that the brake prasaure awitch
naeded to be part of the brake lamp cirecuit.
Q. All right. I don't think that's

incongistent with the fact that the Crulse Contral

AAA COURT REPORETERS 713 46E8-9325
9537 Jonaa_Ruad, No. 363, Houseon, Texaa 77065
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Group is saying there's no necessary to have the
awitch hot, 12 volts, at all times. Ie that
inconsistenkt?
Aa. Yer, it is.
MR. FEENEY: Objection. Object to

form. HNow you're arguing with him.

o. All right. Doag My . Stokeg still work for
Ford?

A, No, he does not.

2. De you know where he works?

A. I believe he worka for Visteon.

Q. Have you spoken to him?

A. No, I have not.

Q. Wag there anyona else from the Speed

Control Group that attanded the meeting cther than

Mr. Stskea?

A. I don't kpnow. I'd have to refsr to thia
list.

Q. It doesn't indicate anyone?

A, Deossn't indicate any.

Q. Okay. Thank you. That 1s -- Qh, I left

one othar thing out. I'm sorry. Go back to that
exhibit. It says, Both optiona are under
consideration. 1Ie that accurate? At this time, was

both Qptions 1 and 2 under conasdaration?

) AAR COURT REFORTERS 713 466-9335
9597 Jonep Road, Kp, 363, Houston, Texas 77065
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] A. I don't know if thay wera. Given ocur
previous discussaion, the -- the second cption

doasn't sound lilke it was underx ceonsidevration. I
can tell you at this point in time that if it was
cunsidered; it was ruled out because that would'wve
meant a massive wiring to the Town Car system to
take care ¢f the preklem, the krake preasure
awitches that were burning. Agaln, goinyg to the
gervice peopla would have to be involwved in putting
that into place., leaving open a lot of oppertunity
for mistakee and probléms with our customers.

Q. Mr. Sharpe's reparting on February 5th
that the options were under discuasicen at this time,.
I understand you didn't go that way. But I'm asking
voll, is it acecurate, were thosa options under
discuasion on February the 3Sth, 19997

A. hgnin. I don't know about the -- that
other option because it's not coneistent wlth cther
messages that go we got from the speed cantrol

pecple.

Q. Whe is John McInerny? Do you see the next .

santence, it way®: Although there is high atteation
on the brake switch, Jochn Mclnerny stated that other
compenents must be investigated as well. Now, he

was at the meeting, was he not?

AAA COURT REFDRTERS 713 466-9325
8597 Joneg Road, Na. 363, Houstoen, Texas 77065
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a. It says that he was,

o. Qkay. And you den't have any basis to
digpute that statement Mr. Sharpe has reparted, do
you, slr? |

A. No, I'm not.

Q. Okay. BAnd did Mr. Mclnerny say other
components cught toc be loaked atw

A. It aays here that Mr. McInerny stated that
other components muat be investigated aes well. And
I believe it guess on to may that it was based on
the NHTSA initial requekt to look at other
components,

Q. Okay. All I'm asking is, 1a that
accurate? Did he aay-somethihg te that effect at
the meeting?

A, What he was sayling 1s chat we nead to

address the NHTEA concern.

Q. Gkay.'-ﬂnw, lock at the naxt page of the
exhibit, -

A. Yean.

Q. It says, Database gsearch of all model year

192, '93 Lincoln Town Car fires show approximately
132 incldents. Do you gsee that?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then it s2y, Database gearch of all modal

AAA COURT REFORTER3 713 455-93?5
5597 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Texas 77065
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year '52 and '93 Town Car fires with brake switch
identified shows 32 incidents, right?

A. That's éurrect.

Q. 8o that tella -- Thare's a -- There's a
hundred incidents for 193, '93 Lincoln Town Car
fires that have not bean cgategorized yet, Would
that be a falr statement?

F-8 What gayse is that there were ?2 incidences
that specifically called out the brake pressurs
awiteh. The other -- the other inglédents may not
have speclfically called-out the brake pressure
ewltch, but may not have called out any other thing
alther.

G- Okay. And then it msays, NHTSA has
requested Ford teo lnvestigate and reapond to the
following componente: Brakﬁ presaure awitch; 43 wey
connactor (banearh the brake fluld £ill resgervolr).
Would you that schamatic tha; we've marked asg an
exhibit ﬁnd show us -~ |

MR. MAYER: Scmekody have a

highlighter?
Q. -- where that component ia?
MR. MAYER: Thank you.
Q. It's in one of your exkikbits?
- A. Right tﬁ:re {(Indicating).

AAA CCURT REPCORTERS 712 4&6&-5325
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0. I see 1lt. 42 way connector, it says,
(beneath the brake fluid fill reservoir).

a. I don't know where that is exactly.

a. All right. How about the EEC controllar
wire harness?

a. Qur investigation was focused on the brake
pressure switch. Somebody else waa loacking at that,
I'm not Qure where that 1s exzctly.

Q. I'm juat asking you if you know where it
is located in the vehicle on the exhibit that vou
have in front of you.

A, Based on the description in this sheet I
can't find 1t, no.

0. Okay. How about the ralay pack, contaims
three relayse, [Ac Cut off, EEC, fuel pump) and the
EEC diode), wher= 1e that?

A, I caﬁ't identify this on thakt sheet.

Q. Do you know where the locacion of any of
thosee other companents are, Mr. Porter?

A. - No, glr. I don't.

Q. Now, itms says, Ford is now invéstigating
to verify i1f other fires, similar in nature, have
occurred on other vehicle lines that use thia
ewitch. Pocus is on model year '92, '93 Crown Vig,

Grand Marguis aa they have identical systems. Did

Akl COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
55%7 Jones Road, Nao. 363, Houston, Texas 77065
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Mr. Sharpe report that correctly, thare wag a focus
at this time on those vehicle lines since they have
identical eystems?

A. That is correcgt.

Q. And there is information on the number of
Lincocln Town Car fires abhaove -- We talkad about a
132 lncidenta. Did you geﬁ eimilar information on
thE_Crawn Vic, Grand Margqulis -~-

A. I'm not «-

o, -- at this meeting?
A. I don't beliave ‘there was.
Q. Ford is requesting an on wite T.I.

rapresantative familiar with the specific brake
awitch applicatioen. Was that accurate? 0id that
ragquegt get made at the meating?

A: It -- Wa did make a reguest. Xf 1t was at

cthar meeting, I'm not sure.

Q. And Texax Inetruments sent Aziz Rahman?
A, That's corract.
. Do you know how scon after this request

was made Mr. Rahman went te Ford?
A, I bealieve there was about a week.
Q. ©Okay. hnd did you -- Is he listed on your
team?

A. Y=a, he ig.

RAA COQURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325 .
559? Jones Road, ¥o. 363, Housten, Texas 77065
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o, Okay. Look at the hattom. It aaye, 12

additional switchesa from Houmton, high mileage, no

fire, were given tc Fred Porter. Do you see that?
A. Yaa.
Q. Under "Action.®
A, Yes.
Q. Ckay. Whers are those switches?

A. Thoea switches -- I'm not aure where those
ewltches are today. !

Q. IL next says, Ford support mesting with
UTA. That stande for United Technologies, daoes it
net?

A. I beliava a0,

a. Ckay. ©On 2-12-39. So that would be
Fehruury 12th, to discusa the wiring and connecktor
lssues. Did he report that correctly?

A. I don't know if ha did or not.

Q. ﬂkly. Was a mseting held with you UTA or

Qr aﬁaut 2-12-&5 tc discuas the wiring and connecktor

lesues?

A? There could've bean.

a. Do you knmow who from UTA attended that
maeting? 1

A. No, I dg not.

Q. Did ynﬁ arrand it?®

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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A. No, sir.
Q. Do you know who on your team attendad?
A. It probably was UTA -- I mean, it ﬁaa

probably Norm LaPointe.

g. okay. Thank you.

A, Norm LaPolnte wag our contact with a UTA
ap the bteam.

Q. Okay. Next action item, PFerd -- Ford is
monitor testfing of brake switrches at Building 5,
injecrad with brake fluid in a 24-volt supply =cross
terminala cngolng. Now, on February Sth of 1999,
wag Mr. Sharpe correct that Ford was monitoering
brake pressure awitches injected with brake fluid
with a 24-volt supply acroses the terminals?

- A, That may have bean an e#p:rimunt we ware
running then, yes.

Q. Bo that wae some tegting that Ford was
doing with brake fluid and aﬂitchas in Fabruary of
1999, gorract? |

A, That's correct,

0. Qkay. Mr. Sharpe has got that reported

accurately, does he not?

A, He probably does.
0. What did those tests shoﬁ?
A, Those tests showed that, you know, cone

AAR COURT REPORTERES 713 466-9325
9557 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Texas 770853
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week perlod, corrosive material gensrated on the

metal components inside the brake switch.

Q- Did Ford do the teats more than one week?
AL No. -

Q. why did Ford stop the testa?

A Because what we were intarested Iin finding

cut from that test wasa if brake fluid wae corrosive
have. .

D; All right. aAnd your conclusion waar?

A Yeas.

Q. All right. Than did you -- After doing
this the test, did you go back and tell the fellow
in your bhrake divigien that it was corrosive?

A, He -- There 1s not a brake division. But,

no, "we did not ge back apd tell them.

Q. Did you share the report with him?

A. We shared the_infarmation in the Leam
meantling. _ |

Q. Did vou do any other testing? By the way,

how many brake switches wers injected wicth brake

flyid?
aA. 1 think, one ocr two.
Q. Did you do any additional testing of brake

mwitches injected with brake fluid?

A. Not at that time.

Aap COURT REPORTERE 713 466-9325
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G- I the next teat that Ford did the cone
that was proeduced to us and has been marketed as
Exhibit 1?7

A Yes, the one that was showing that,
degpite T.I.'s previcus statements that brake fiuid
wouldn't cause a fira in the switch, that wa were
able to make tﬁat happen.

MR. MAYER: Object, nonresponsive.

Q. Okay. Now, ia there.unything about
Mr. Sharpe's detail of the mmetirg other than that

we've talked about that you think is inaccurate?

A. I wouldn't be able Co Bay one way or
anckther.

g. Okay. That last document was dated
February the 5th, |
" (Exhibit No. 25 marked.)
Q. Let me hand you what'e bean marked as
Exhibit 25. This is a fax to you from Steve

Beringhause, who is hera today aﬁ'fhe daposition; is

he net?
A. Yes, sir.
+ Okay. Thie fax is dataed February the 8th,

133%. Do yeu Bea that on the fax cover sheet?
A. Yes, I do.

Q. Ckay. ©Did you receive thia?

AAR COURT REFORTERS 713 466-9325
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A. I believe that I did.
Q. Was this the firat time you had worked
with Mr. Beringhause or had you dpoken to him before

this pointc?

A. I don't know iIf we had spoken pricr thie
or -- to this or ngot.
2. Okay. Well, lat's take a laock at the

letter. It's the next page. It'e dated February
8th, 1%99%. Fred, as wa discussed over the phone
Friday, per your requaskt we looked at the
possibility of adding a fugse in line with tha
presgure gwitch. Did you talk with him on the phone
Friday, as reported in thisg letter?
A, YaE. ,
Q. Did you reguest that T.I. lock into the
poasibilities of adding a fuse in line with the
presaure awltch? -

A. i dnn}t'believa we did.

g. | Qkay. Did -- Doea Mr. Beringhause juat
have it wrong hara?

A. Ne. 1 believe that they leckad into 1t

thamselves.
Q. Ckay. It wae not a Ford requesc?
a. I'm pot Bure that it waa.
Q.- Do you know one way or the other,

RAR COQURT REPORTERS 713 466-5325
3597 Jones Road, No, 363, Houston, Texas 77065
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Mr, Porter?

A. I don't rec¢all it bming a Ford reguest,

Q. Okay. We think a more appropriate
golution migﬁt be, use a relay circuit, sachematic
attached. And ie there a schamatic attached to
Ehig?

A. ¥Yes, there 1is.

0. Okay. ©Did Mr. Beringhause talk with you

abaﬁt why he thought it was more approprlate to usge
a relay circuits as opposed to an in-line fuse?

A. Yes, he did.

Q; Okay. ©Qur understanding of the
application ie that the brake pressure ewitch is a
fzilsafe componant to shut off the cruise control if

the atandard brake light awitch faile. Is= that

correct --
A. That'm --
Q. -- his undergtanding correct?

A. That'ng Carrect.
Q.. All right. By -- The braks switch,

tharefore, only needs to be powered when the c¢rulse

control is on. I8 that correct?
A, That'm corract.
Q. By placing a normally copen relay in the

gircult and only cleoaing the relay whaen the cruise

ARA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
84557 Jones Road, Mo. 363, Houstcen, Texas 770&5
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<ontrel is activated, the switch will only be

powered when 1t needs te be, when the cruise control

is enablad, Is that correctc?
A. That's +sorrect.
0. Okay. If you are correct that the high

current draw ia the source of igniticn, a relay
would be a better solution than an in-1line fuse
because the relay pravants tha high currant
situaticon from happeniﬁg rathar-than reacting once

it does cecur. Did I read that right?

A. That's what it savya.

Q. Okay. ©Did you ebel]l Mxr. Beringhause chat
you believed in February of 195%0 -- I'm sorxy --
February 8th of 19 -- Let me start again. Did you

tel]l Mr. Beringhause in Februyary of 1899 that you
believed the high current draw was the source of
igniticon?

A, I believe, what I teold Mr. Beringhause 1in

_1559, that failed awitches with brake fluid inslde

th-ﬁ ware the cause of tha fires and that current
previded te that was -- was tha ignition scurce. We
also know that the trand data from ather_vehiclea
ﬁhows that that design £id net hava a problem in our
other vehicles lines or in later model years of the

19 -- aof the Town Car, Crown Vic and Grand Marguis.

ARA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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G. Do you admi; telling him in thia time

‘|frame, February, 1993 that you believe high current

draw was the source of the ignition?

MR. FEENEY: Object. Asked and

anawered.
Q. You can answar.
A. You know, there'as a lot of things that I

fmay have sald at that peint in time because we

under -- were under a stresgaful investigatlioan. And
I now know that we were_being stonewalled by Texas
instrument in that inveatigation.

MR. MAYER: Objeck, nonresponsive.

2. Did you tell Mr. Beringhause in February
of }995 that high current draw was, in your opinion,
at that time the source of ignition?

A.  That may have been one thing that I eaid,
along with a lot of other things --

- Okay.

A. «= undar the frustration of nat heing_ahla
to work cn this pragrnﬁ. Things wers not coming
together like they should've bgen.

Q. You were under a lot of pressure to find a
root cause to thils probklem, wers you not,

Mr. Porter?

A. Yes, 8ir.

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-932%
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@ 1f you are correct that a high current
draw is the asource of ignitiecn, a relay would be a
better sclution than an in-line fuse because the
relay preventa the hiﬁh current aituatlon from
happening rather than reacting once 1t does occur.
Do vou agree wlth that?

A. A relay would bhe battar than an in-line
fusa, corract.

Q. okavy. If you havs quegtinns, give me =
call; and it 1igte his phone number. Ang actrcached
te 1t is =& Bchematic that he sent to you that
explainse the relay that he's talking abeout; is that
correct?

A, I hbelieve BO, ves.

0. Wwhat did you do when you got this
information? Did you assign it to one of your team
nembers to review?

A. We had -- I believe we took it inte the
taam to reviaw.

Q. ALl right. Was --

A I don't know that it was a individual.

Q. All right.

A I think there were various people that had
their input inte it. Cne of one of big concerns

with thia, again, as I stated before, 18 to put this

AAARA COURT EEPORTERS T13 466-9325
9557 Jones Road, No. 363, Hauston, T?xas T70465
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into the Town Cars in the '$2, 93 time frame would
Fequire mervice people to cut into the wiring
harnesses, there could be mistakes in cutting those
wiring harnesses, hocking int; the wrong parts.
There wéula be the pecasibility of packaging it in a
dangerous positlon; and on further review, of the
relay becoming the part that ignites.

Q. Did you sent thiz schematic tec anycne 1in
Ford or Viateon's Crulse Control Group?

A I didn't send it te them. Mr. Kohl was --

wouldtve come to one of the meetings and reviaswed it

alag,
0. Ancd that's Frad Kohl?
A. That's correct.
. Do you have a upecific recolleetion of

whatha£ M., Kohl and you discuseed this proposal?

A. Mr. Kokl was & mewmber -- or part of the
group that diascussed it and ih finally datermining
that it was not a gosd idea.

Q: 8¢ you do hava a recgellection of

discusslng 1t with Mr. EKohl?

A. Ton,
Q. Okay.
(Exhibit No. 26 markad.)

. Exhibit 26. Exkibit 25 is a E-Mail from

ARA COURT REPORTERS 713 486-9125 .
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Aziz Rahman to a mseries of people, iucluding Robert
Sharpe, who locks like he printad it ocut, dated
February 12th, 1959. Ix that consiatent witﬁ your

reading of the top portion ef the document?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. Mr. Rahman was at this time
regident at --.at Ford, was he not?

A I believe so.

Q. Dkay. And hﬁ'a reporting on wh;t happenad

in his day. The date referenced is February the

licth, 1999; is that right?

A. YTea.

7. Okay. Main e&vent of the day wag a
technical review. KXey parﬁicipants ware -- And he
lists a series of people., Some are new namss. Waa

Jack Pasques, was he an your group?

A.

Q.

presounce

Q.

other of what transpired at the tech meeting --

‘Okay. And Chuek Pagh -- Papke? Did I

+

No, he wams not.

that right?

I don't know what that --

Okay. Do you know what -- Well, did you
technical review meeting?

I probably did.

Do you have a recollecticn one way or the

9537 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Texas 770&5
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A. I believe - -

Q. -- without notesa?

A. I -- I believe that we reviewed what was
in the version of the & -- 124-D at that time.

. inn_D'Neill. who is éhat?

A. It says that she's the Quality Director

for Luxury VC.

0. And did you deal with her whan you wers
working or your inyestigatinn;

A, She wag In -- in the meating, the
managsment mestings.

2. Was the way 1t worked, that Erom time to
time there were these technical review meetings and
you would coma to the meeting and present Lhe

tindings of your group?

A. Ford people would go te that meeting.

Q. Qkay. - And -- And Ware you asked to report
periodically to a -- to a tachnical review meeﬁing?

A. Yag. -

Q. Okay. There's soma refsrences an yocur

calendar, I think, Tech review mesting. ©Did other
peaple heaidea you from your team go and -- and
report to the Tach Revi&w Committee?

A.  Yes.

Q. Okay. Who would that have besen?

AAR COURT REPCRTERS 713 46E6-9325
9597 Jonesa Road, No. 363, Houston, Texae 77065
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A. Jog Nems,

0. Okay.

a. Tom Masters.

Q. All right. Here. I've jut the liat of
that.

A. Bill Abramczyk may have been there.

0. And - the -- the -~- the members of the

Tecknical Reviaw Committee, how are they gelected?
Lo you know? -

A, I'm not sura how that's done,

Q. Okay, Are they typically officers at

Ford, thay're higher up?

A, I don't knew what the positclons would be
aexactly.
- Q. And 1t sayse, Next tech revisw every

Thursday. And during this time perind, do you
recall if there wa# a technical review meeting every
Thuraday? _

A. I recall that were having a weekly Etech
review and that Thursday was prebably the day.

Q. And_Hr; Rahman ham written, Implies cors
team prep meeting every Wednesday. &aAnd is that --
The core team, 1s thaf the reference to the team
you've identified here on Exhibit 227

A. Yag.

AAR COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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a. Okay. So the way it werked is, your core
team met on Wedneadays and than some members of yaur
core team would attend the technical review meeting

an Thursday?

a. That's correct.

Q- Okay. And was everyone -- Well, there's a
very -- He's repcorting on what happened at the
meeting. There is a -- By the way, did Mr. Rahman

attend a technical review mesting or the core team

meeting?
A, He wauld attend rthe core team meeting.
. All right. He wouldn't he parmitted in

the cechnical review meeting; it waa Ford only,
corract?

- A, Under certain circumstances suppliars
might be Involved.

Q. Dkay. But was he sver lnvired to attend
the technical review, to your knowladge?

A, I don't believe he was.

Q. Had.anynne from Texas Inetruments ever
invited to attand the Ford Tachnical Review
Committes maetings on this problam?

F No, I do tnot believe they ware.

@. Did you suggest to anybody that they cught

to invice people from T.I.7

AAA COURT REPCRTERS 713 466-5315
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-]

D N 0O o 0 @ D 0

there.

o.

We discussed that.

Who 4id you discuass thaf with?

I believe I discussad it with Joe Neme,
And were vou 1n favor of it or against ic?
I wae neutral.

Okay. What did Mr. Heme aay?

He was neutral also.

Kho elee discussed it --

We --

~- basidea you bwa?

-

We tock it to the mesting and discussed it

All right. And what wasa the discussion at

the meeting?

-

A.
2.

something
Q.
A,

The coneenpus was not to lnvite,

Why?

I don't kunow. Other than --

Did you object? I'm sorry. 4o ahead.
Othar -- Othar than it wap really not

that T.I. needed to ke lbnvelved with.

Why?

Bec¢cause thisa wam Ford's business, not

Texas Instrumantsa’'.

Q.

A.

Did you object te that decizion?

Ko, I dild nat.

AAMR CQURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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) A, No, =sir.
3. Unanimous?
A. I baliave B8o0.
Q. Okay. 8o Mr. Azlz would bes recalling

avanks that cccurred at the corse team meeating; ia
that right?
| A, Or what he heard in the hallway.

Q. Ckay. There's a vary urgeant need to
recreate ignition in the lab. That coming back --
They kept coming back to this again and again. Did
that occour at a core bteam meeting held on or about
February 11th, 19%97

A. I -- T believe that we did want to be able
ko apaw if a brake pressure gwitch could ignite. At
that pericd ¢f time Texas Inetrument was skeptical
that brake pressure switches could 1lgnite at all,
even though we had the Reddick switeh 1ln hand that
we knew had burned. We were agking tham to look at
what would be involved In causing the brxake prasaure
awltch to dgnitea. Speculation and -- and
brainetorming had concluded that ceartalnly if a
contamination had gutﬁen inside the brake preasure
switch, that that could happen. As wa showed -- Or

as wam he dlacussed pre#iouuly. wa are -finding that

AJA COURT REPORTERS 713 4£66-3325
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ERRZ-E25-R 12623



10
i1
iz
13
14
15
1¢
17
14
18
20
21
22
23
24

25

1149

2 brake fluld could causme carrosicn of the parts
yh?ch would result In pogaibly mecal materials
forming inside.

Q. By the way, I forgot tc ask you: That
tast that was dene at Ford to datermine whether
brake fiuid was corrosive, that teat that was
stopped after a week, did yvou send the rasults of
that test to Texas Instrumesnts?

A. No, we did net. We reported it in the
Lazm meetings.

Dﬂ You say that Taxas Inst;umenta waag
skeptical that a switch could burn, Who at Texas
Instrumsente are you attrihuting thage aentimenta to?

A, Charlie Douglae, for onae.

Q. Anybaody alga?

A. I don't recall who was in.attendance of
the meetinge in -- in Dacember and garly January.

Q. So that*a_r=£=rring te -- ¢ the reaction
of T.I. people in December and early January?

A. Yeas.

Q. T.I. ﬁeuplu wera skeptical and the perscon
that you've.idencified i{s Mr. Douglas --

A, Corrack.

Q. -- right? And he said to yocu, I don't

believe the ewitch could burn or words to that

. AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 456-9325
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effectc?
A. Yes.
Q. And yocu replied, I assume that somebody

had seen it burning in Memphis?

A. Yas.

Q. And what was his response?

a. There was no responsag,

Q. Is that wﬁat you draw your Iin conclusicon

that he was akeptical akout; the ability of the
switch the catch on a fire?

A. Other people-from T.I -~ And don't
ramember their nammas -~ reitmrated thakt same
thought.

Q. You can't recall any of the names of those

|peepla heare tcoday in this deposition?

A. Not specifically.

Q. All right. Thay kept -- There was
con@lderable concern that the field data aet is not
complecte and Joe Nemea hapg been tapped to gaﬁ a
clearer pictures of events breakdown. Is Mr. Rahman
raperting that corractly? Was there a concern at
the core team meeting and was Joe Neme asked to go
get a clearer pleture?

A, We were trying to get more information as

we could.

ARA CCURT REPQRTERS 713 466-9325
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Q. Okay. There was strong feelings that --
got to d¢ more. IB that an accurate reporting of
the -- your concern and the taam's concern at the
time?

A. The investigation wap not goling guickly
encugh, correct.

. ©Okay. Fred'a statement, "That T.I.
Engineearing is resident here" glicited as a *Good"
regponge. Firat, did you make such =z statament?

a, Yea, I did.

Q- Okay. 0Did 1t elicit a good rasponse?

A. I believe it did. And that -- And with
that line --

Q- Yea, sir.

- a. -- Okay -- What he --Iﬁhat he's reporting

on i» what he heard that happened at the technical

deglign review, this 1ls not firsthamnd knowledge that

he's reporting on. _

'_b. Okay. All right. 8¢ you made the
statement: T.I. Englineering is resident heres in the
Tachnical Review Commlittes?

A. And thay sald "Good.*
Q. Okay. And somebedy told him that and
that'a why he's reporting that back te his

management?

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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A. Thet'a right,

Q. Okay. I met with Fred on February 12th in

the morning to capture his thoughts on fullaﬁing
up -- on follow up actiona. Did you meet with

Mr. Rahman en February 12th in the morning?

A, I prebably did.

Q. Ro you have any notes of that meeting?
A, No, I den'k.

o. Do you have g spacifi; racollection of

what occurred at that meeting?

Aa. HNo, I don't.”

Q. Would you defer to Mr. Rahman and his
notes? '

A. I may.

a.. Okay. I met with Fred to capture his

thoughts on follow up acticns. Needing "raft" of
experimants to accalerata Captain {(aie.} -- Iaptan.
waar. Was that one of your concerna?

a. Our concern was that ws knew that brake
fluid had gotten through the Kapton layer and we
neaded to understand what -- what that -- hew cthat
could happen.

@. ~ All right.

A It did not make sanse on the Memphis

switch that had somewhere in the order of 50- to

ARA COURT REFCRTERS 713 446-9325
95537 Jones Rcad, No. 363, Houston, TexaB 77065
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60,000 mileg that it was going to leak brake fluid

prematurely, given the tests that theege switches

were purported te have passaed.

Q. The references to "raft", what -- what
does -- does that mean a leot of tests?

A. I think that's his word.

Q. Qkay.  Is that the way you underatand itk?

A. That's the way I would read it, but itc's
hia =-- .

Q. Okay.

A. - thaught..

a. All right. And did you at the core
meeting say, we nsed -- we need more experiments to

aceelerate Kapton wear?
. Aa. Y!q.

G. Okay. Need to design and execute a DDE.
what 1s DOQE? _

‘ A. I believe the initials DOE stand for
Deslign Of Bxplrimeﬁts.

Q. | With temperature, moisture, disgk snergy,
contaminantal{suap, dnturgunt}.number of Fapton
layars, etcetera as factors. Didé he report that
correctly?

A. . Yesa, he did.

Q. Ckay. I will close with Eryan on this.

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 4656-%325
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Ia that -- This design and execute, was that
something you wanted Texas Instruments to do?

Aa. Yes, 1t i=s.

Q. We need a plan with timing next Wednaaday.
Is that the deadline you asked him to work under?

A. I believe we were asgking it for the next

core team meating.

Q. Cckay. And did he provide it?
A. Ha, he did not.
Q- Did he give you an explanation on why it

wasn't being provided?-
A. I believe that what he anawered was that

T.I. thought it was too complex of an experiment.

Q. For their technical capability?
A, Ne. Just that they didn't want to deo it.
a. He told you that at the next core tean

meeting, as best aa you ecan racall?

A, A3 best ams I c¢an recalling.

@. Did he say anycthing else?

A. No.

0. Did you then try to finds someone else to

do this test?

A, There was nobody elsa that we had that

could do this test.

Q. Why is that?

ARA COURT REPORTEEE 713 46&-3325
5597 Jones Road, Ne, 383, Houston, Texas 77065
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A. Because it's a unigue switch that's

provided by T.I. Other people don't have the

equipment to do these kinde of tests. We reiied on
T.I. to do the gpecification testings and to report
on that informaticn to us.

0. Well, thia 1as talking about something

diffaersnt. Thia 1a saving, we need to design and

axecute some expariments to axamine meisture, disk

anergy, contaminants, number <f Xapton layeras as
factora. And my guaestion ie: bid you ask anyone
elge ajithar at Ford or-Hi-Stat or any other company
to do those teats?

a. Again, T.I. would be the only people that
would have the equipment that would be able to run
thoss kinds of tests and the knowledge to be able to
draw those conclusions.

MR. MAYER: Object, responaive.

Q. The answer's, you --

MR. FEENEY: 1 oblact to your
objection.

Q. ‘¥You didn't anaﬁur --

MR. FEENEY: It is responsive. You
juat don't like tﬁe fact that it was T.I.'s
responaibility, do you?

Q. You did not ask anyone slse to go and run

ARL COURT REPQRTERS 713 456-9325 .
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the teats that you have cutlined here, did you, sir?
- A. We askad T.I. to zun them and T.I, did --
asked -- or said they wouldn't do ikt and there wa g
nobody elae to ask.

a. Okay. Did you lnvestigate what athar
companies may be possibkle, can institute teating?

A. I know -- |

MR, FEENEY: A T.I. awitech vou're
talking about hera?

MR. MAYER: NKo. He's talking about
Rapton layers{

MR. FEENEY: Okay. Okay.

@0 ahead, Mr., Porter.

o, Just, did you inveatigate any other
conmpanias? You gay thara were none.

A. Azls -- Azim 1s talking about Kaptoen
layers and the varlous componenta. What we were
locking for was a c¢omprehensive test of the com --
of -- of the brake prassure switch and ail the
variableu that.might be iavolved with that.

ﬂ.- Rall, ﬁn: thig -- was this testing
samath;ng that Ford had dhaignad?

A. _No, air. We ware undar &an inveatigation

for firee, under hocd fires of Town Care. We were

trying to understand why the hrake preasure awitchas=a

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
2597 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Tuxaﬁ 7?7065
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could even be considered te be an under hood Tawn
éar problem and we wers looking at what mechanisms
that might produce. We would!'ve have hoped that
Taxas Instrument weould be understanding of how to --
and interested in knowing that alao,

Q. All right. And your teatimony 1a that you
agked for a raft of experimants to ke done to
accelerate Kapton wear, but Tﬁxas Inetrumenkts sald
that the experiments that you asked for were too
complex and thay could not do 1t? |

A. That's corrsct.

c And at that polnt the matter ended?

A. Yas.

Q Looks like we may need two to three times
life. FNe will need to astablisgh a raal application
regquiramant for ten-year, 150,000 miles, 00X is nokt
.enaugh. What solutlens can T.I. avaluate and put

into placea in twe montha. Did he raport that

corractly?
A. Yoo,
0. Ko potential sclutlon should he eliminated

faor cost reasona. Did he report that correctly?
A That's c¢orrect.
Q. Having the switch hot at all times is not

a good practice and Ford will bhe intarnally working

) AAR COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
9597 Jonas Road, No. 3631, Houston, Texzs 77065
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on a solution for this. Did he report that
Torrectly’?

A. Yes. Again, I was frustrated at the --
what wasa going on. 2And without underatanding what
aur different epticons wera andtthat, in fact, thesge
Switeh was -- switchea were failing pre --
prematurely in the vehie¢le, causing firea; you know,
I said thart that was not a good idea. ©OF course,
our daﬁjgn practica waa that with éxpectation that
the switches would live the life of the vehicle.

. Why did you say it ﬁasn't a good idea,
Mr. Porter?

A, Becavse I was frustrated. You know,
under -- under the -- under the pressure again of
the investigation, we ware looking at, what can we
go guilckly. Thaﬁ wae one of the thouwghts that had
baen brought out ﬁruvinully, we talked abeut in
Mr. Baringhausa'\s memo ma. ;t_wal lumething.that
was on tha froat of my mind that would bae an
inﬁeraating way of doing it. ®But ar the end of the
day 1t was the h?akn praggure switches themselves
that werﬁihaving the failure moda.

Q. Didn't you say ~--

THE COURT REPORTER: <Can we go off

the record, please -~

g
AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 465-9%325 g
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MR. MAYER: Okay.

THE COURT REPORTER: -- to change
paper.

THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Off the record,
12:07:48.

(Lunch raceasa taken.])

THE VIDECGRAPHER: Back on the
record, 1:24:30, beginning of Tape 2.

q. Mr. Borecar, ha!ﬁra lunch we warertalking
about BExhibit 26. If you still have that handy, I
wanted to aak you cne er two more guaeset lons about
chat. That 1s the Azis Rahman E-mail that Robert
Sharpe had sent out. Do you have that?

A. Yes.

Q. Mx. Rahman reports in the one, twe, thizxd
paragraph, he has a meeting with Cenetral Lab folks

at 1:00 o'clock to look at Kapton from non-fire,

Inen-leak gwitches with varying mileage. Tha Central

Labs, cap C and cap L, is that Ferd Ceatral Lab
pecple?

_A. I don't know for sure. Thias 1a his -- his
atatement. That would be my guesa.

Q. Okay. Do Tup'knuw if ha had a meeting
witﬁ the Ford Central Low (wic.) -- Central Lab

people at 1:00 o'clock ~--

: AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
9597 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Texas 77085
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A. No, I de not.

Q. -- t& look at Kapton? Would you defar to
him on that? | |

A. I'd dafer to the Central Lab people con
thac.

Q. All right. 1Is there any reason ycu have
to believe that he did not have that meeting?

A. I have no reason to believe it one way or
the other. |

2. Ckay. And did you ask for hiﬁ ta work
with Ford Central Lab padplu te leok at EKagptona?

A, I bellieva, as a -- as a part of the
invesetigation. I don't know that I asked hinm
gpecifically te go talk to the Central Lab people.
That may have keen something that hes took on on his
OWIl . |

0. Did you agk My. Azlz Razhman to do anything
fhat ha did nokt do while he was ragident at Ford?

A. I -- I don't know that ha didm't do them.
I know that there were several guestions that --
that had heen ralsed over time that he w28 not
necessarily ablg to answar himsalf, that may ncot
nave baen anawerad. -

Q. Do you have.any criticiem of him as an

engineesxr and what he did at the Pord facilicy during

AAR COURT REFORTERS 713 466-9325
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thie time periocd?

A, I den't have any criticism of him doing
that investigation at that point.

Q. Can you think of anything that -- that you
asked him to do or that he was unable to do when he
waE there? )

A. Again, 'I think there were some gueationa
that =-- that were gﬁiqg back to the home.nffica, - at

to apeak, thart maybe wersn't answered.

Q. Can you tell us what thope guestions were?
A, I can't tell_ you that at this point.
Q. The last point: There's a last paragraph.

It pays, With Fred out next week, Steve Reimers will
ba the main T.I liaiscn. When you were out on
vagcation, was S8teve Reimars in -- in charge of Ehe
group?

A, Steve Reimers would've been tha --
atanding in for me then.

o. And my reaccllaction from your calendar, at
some point arocund here you had a planned vacation
which you took, cbrrqct?

A. I beliave BO .

(Exhibit No. 27 markad.}
Q. Tha next document is Exhibit 27 which

loaoks to me to be an E-mall from Stave Beringhause

AR COURT REPORTERE 713 156-9325_
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toc you dated February the 12th, 1999, with sBome
attachments., My quesiian ia: Do you recall
receiving an E-Mail from Mr. Beringhause on ﬁr about
February 13th, 1999 with the attachmente that hawve

been marked as Exhilbit 277

A. I -- 1 recall receiving a decument similar
‘to thiw.
0. When yeu got this, did you review the

material?

A. I balieve I read through if, yes.

c. All right, And would you hava delegaced
this to somebody or would this have been informatlion

that you kapt?

A. I may have passed it on to other pecple
al;n.-

Q. Do you know who vou would'va sent it to?

A I may have sment it to Steve Reiﬁcrs.

Q. ﬁkny. ALl gight. _Lnnk at -=- Ro. I-dun't

have any more guestions on that.
(Exhibit No. 28 marked.)

Q. Lat me ﬁand vyou what's bean marked an
Exhibit 28. Thgaa appear to bea -- The firset page
appears to pbe notes of a meaeting held on Pebruary
the 12tk, 1989 witﬁ OTA. That'e Unitad

Technologlesa?

AARA CQURT REPORTERS 713 466-5325
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; A. Again, we maid that that was probably who
that was before,

Q. And this references a maeting held at 1:0p
o'clock at Central Laboratories! small conference
room and yéu're liated ae one of the attendeas: ig
that right?

A. I'm not Eure.what that list is at the top,

Q. Okay. Dﬁ you have any reccllection,

Mr. Porter, of attending a meeting on or about

February 12th with representatives of United

+

Technologies?
A. Right noew I don't recall that, no.
Q- Ckay. There are two names given of

individuals from United Technologies, & Dan
Kuikarni. Do you know Mr. Kulkarni?

A. I may have met him, but I wouldn't know

him today.
o. hﬁd Dick Ratke, R-a =- R-a-t-k-&, da you
know him?
A, SaMme answer.
Q. When's the last time #au gpuke to either

one of those individqalu, i1f ever?
A. If I aevar epoke to.them and if I was at
this meecing, this is prabably it.

Q. Okay. Do you have any reason to doubt

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-33135
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that you were in attendance at this mesting?

A. I'm not sure what this meeting is exactly.

Q. The reference 1ls, Connecteor FZAB 14&454
ADE. 1Is that a Feord part numbaer?

A. It appears te be a Fprd part number.

Q. Do you know if that ia the connector that
was placed on thae brake pregsure switch in the '32,

t93 Lineceln Town Cara?

A, I1'd have to defer to tha Ford
documentation.

2. Do you recall how thig meating got set up?

A, No, I do net, I don't really recall this
meating.

Q. Do you have aay reason to deoubt that the

subject agenda that'asa lisced here was, in fact, the

agenda'that wada usead at the meeting?

A No, 1 dqn't.

Q. Do you. know whe preparaed this document?
A, Ne, I do not.

Q. This was a document that was produced by

Ford and tharae's soma ~-- If yﬁu lock under File,

right under Hn._a-i: says, Fille/l4ads4/nrl. IR

that -- Is that initials?
A. I don't know,
o. Do yecu kndw what Mr. Horm LaFaintce'sa

AAA COURT REPQRTERE 713 466-9325
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finitials are?

A, g, I do not.
Q. Iea that a formak that you're familiar
with, that little -- I ¢all it header, but whatever,

you know.

A. That looks like a normal Microsoft file
description.
g. Okay. AL the -- One of the agenda items

was: Qbtain and discups FMEA. Did you obtaln an
FMEA from United Techn9lngies during your
investigation inkto the under hnod.firas in *'5%2, '83
Lincolne? \

A. At this point I don't recall whether we
did that. Mr. LaPointe wasg lesading that part cof the
investigation with United Technologlems.

G. Khat -- What would ke the purpose of
obtaliniay wuch a documant from United Tﬁahnulagian
Mr. Portar?

A. To uﬁderutand wﬁat kind of failure modes
tﬁuy wuuld'vq_identifiid in the component,

o. Now, I can tell yecu, I kave not sean that

produced in the material that Ford produced in this

case and I don't purport to know evez single

document. Have you Been it ip the last -- I don'k

know -=- year-and-a-half?

AAX COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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A. I guess I -- I don't know that I have geen
it in the last year-and-a-half.

0. Do you recall ever seeing it?

A. I don't recall having seen it or not
elther way.

Q. There ia an Item No, 4 on the agenda:
Disacuse sealilng details and the hiastory of the above
connttector. Do you know what gealing demtaile ara?

A. I don't know what tﬁat is exactly. What
chat guestlon sounds t6 me like, vary aimilar
gquestions we were asking Texas Instrument as to what
kind of changes may hava ocrcurrad to the component
during the time frame. That -- That was one of the
quastions that we were asking in general everybody.

B Q. Okay. Do you recall recelving any writtan
material from United Technologies about the history
of their -- of their connector?

A. Again, I don't recall raceiving anything.
I' think they would've sent that to MNerm LaPointe.

Q. Now, lock at the second page and tell me

1f you recognize the handwriting on this decument.

A. No, I do not.

Q It'a pot youra?

A. It's definitely not mina.

Q Is it the handwriting of anyone at Ford on

AAN COURT REPOQRTERS 713 466-9335
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your team that you can recognize?

A. I -- I don't recognlze other people's
handwriting. |
Q. There's a -- a first item: Will silicon

sponge pasé moisture? Do you recall that being a
topic of discusslon when you ware in charge of the
Ford investlgatien?

A That epecific description, I den't Fecall
that topic of discussion. |

Q. No. 2: Both seals are sub -- I guess it'a
acme abbreviation -- CONT or COST, red in gray. Do
you know what that refers Lo?

A Na, I do neot.

Q. Da you know what -- Do you know whether
there were two aeals ilnvolved in the connectors in
the *'32, 'SBILincnln Town Car?

A, I don't know if thera were or not.

0. And then: Heousing is UTA molded. That
means Unitad Technelcgies, Earract?

A. Aﬁain. that seems to be what we've been
agreeing on.

Q. And was UTA the solea supplier for the
connectors for the '%2 '33 Lincoln Town Car?

A. I den't know that for sure.

2. Do you have any reason to bellsve it’s

AAA COURT REDPORTERS 713 466-9312S _
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nat?
A, I have no reason to believe one way or the
other.

Q. A gray seal -- No. 5: Gray seal,

{lubricated ‘for X-time, de you know what that refers

to?

A. No, I do neot,

[Exhibit No. 29% marked.)

a. Let me hand you Exhibic 55 which appeara
te be an E-Mail from Deepak Goel. Is that how you
proncunce 1t? -

A. Deepak Goel.

Q. Deepak Goal toc you, this one dated
February the 12th, 1%%9. Am I correct Ethat, at
least, from the headar, that's what thakb 1s?

a. Yed,

Q. Who is Jack Paskus? He's rxefarred to down
thcie abnut'hnlfwgy down the page.

A. Ee'Aa «- Ha's a parson in Ford'a

management,

Q- What zole did he have in the
invuatigatinn?

A. He was in aﬁme of the management mestinga.

Q. Do you know what hia role was. in the

manzgement meetings?

AAR COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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A, No, I do not recall that.

o. The previous sentence which appeare to be
an E-Mall from Sam Cole to Deepak Gnel says=' I Jjust
left the tech review for the Town Car NHTSA
invegtigation. This ie viewed ams a serious lague
and Ford is late in responding to NHTSA's viewpolnt.
Were you told, Mr. Porter, during your investigation

that NHTEA considered Ford late in reaponding te its

ingquiries?
A. Not other than this memo.
Q. This -- Thie is the time that you became

aware of it?

A. Yas, I guess.

Q. And there's alsc a reference to Rob
English down about three paragraphs from the bottem.
I have askad Rob English tec take the lead cen leocking
at the connector to determine 1f there are any
potantial leakage path to ground. ©Did that happen?

bid Mx. English take that portion of the

|invastigation?
A. You'd have to ask him.
Q- Do ycu kroaw ynurhelf?
A. I balisva Eh- -~ the -- I balieve thakt his

response wasa that, no, there was not a leakage path

through the connactor by itaslf.

AAR COURT REPQRTERZ 713 466-9325
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Q. Did he -- Did he take cover that jeb from
you, looking at the connector? Was that part of
your group and theno it was farmed out EO snménne
else?. That's what I'm asking.

A, He was -~ Ne, it would not be farmed cut
azs to somebody else. He just had contacts with --
with the wiring group.

Q. Okay. And then it saye: Fred has the
laad on internél gwitch investigation. That's you,

Fred Poxter. Am I right?

A, That's correckt.

Q. And then it saya: Tom has the lead on the
overall aystema look. That is Tom Donovan?

a, No. I believe that they would be

referring toe Tom Masters.

Q. Gkay._ And I guese what I'mrasking is, was
Mr. Kohl superilor to you s¢o that he had authority
over this invastigation, was_ablé to inetruct Rab
English to take a portion and -- and Tom Héaparﬂ to
take a portion?

A. He wasg in a different part of the company.

Q. But did he hava tha authnrity.to do that,
I guess, is what I'm ankiﬁg?

A in -- In asnething like this, anybody who

hae an idea has the authority to try and make things

AAA COURT REEBORTERS 713 466-9325
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happen so as to bring a conclusion to the

investigation aa quickly as possible.

. okay. And you gaid you didn't -- fnu
weren't feally seure whather Rok Englieh took the
lead at loocking at the zonnegtar. Did Mr. Masters
rake the l=ad on overall systems?

A, What 1a meant by Mr. Masters taking the
lead on the overall systemms im loocking at the other
threercompunents on the NETSA, plus cther compconents
under hood on the left-hand side of the wehicle that
are powerad at all timeés that could've been a result
of the fires that the NHTSA was asklng about.

@2. Okay. And to your knowledge, did he do
that?

A. Yes, he &id.

Q. pid he invalve any of your team members in

rhat wark?

A. ‘Jée Kafadi would've been working with him
an that.- |

Q. Okay. Anybody mlae from your team?

A. No.

0. Okay. Attached to this exhibit is a Work
Plan - Brake Pressure Switch? Do youw ses that?
A. Yes.

a. The next page? Ig that something that

AAR COURT REPORTERS 713 466-3325
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Ford created?
A I believe that it is,
Q. Okay. Do you know who on your team

would've been the scribhe on this?

A. No, I'm not sure who it waa,
0. Okay. The next page is Steve Reimers. It
Bays: Root Caupe Inveatigation Teata., But if you

look at the bottom left, it'e to Steve Relmers.

A. That's corract,

0. Is that conpistent with yout
understanding, that this was material put togethesx

by Steve Reimers?

A. Thess pages would be, vaa.
Q. Now, aa of this dazte there are some things
that T.I.'8 -- looks like, being asked to do on this

Work Plan. Pagw 2 of 7, if you look at that,
there's a -- What is the difference in the base
materiales that look different? T.I., by. than
there's a note: Campl.;nu. But there's no date in
there. Is that something that you rscall your
people asking Texas Instruments to loock inteo?

A. 1 believe sO.

Q. Okay. And tha ﬁaterial cnil-nuta for '92,
93, again, something you askmd T.I. te look intu?.

a. Yes.

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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1 Q. Ckay. Now I'm golng down the page.

. 2 Analysie of the Memphis parts (crease marks in the
3 diaphragm). What does that refer to?
4 A. Thaf's asking T.1. what ¢ould result in
5 caualing the crease marks that were found in the
B Memphia parc, tﬁe creadge marka that -- that the

7 cracks that-allowed the brake fluid to come through,

B to understandse 1f T.I. understacd what coculd cause
9 those -- those cracks; if there was anything that
10 was part cof there procesa that would be a cause for
11 that. -
12 Q. All right. And there's a dakte in there,
13 2-18-99. Do you know if T.I. reaponded to the
. 14 inguiry to them?
15 - A, I don't believe thay reeponded then.
16 2. Did they regpond at scme point in time?
17 A. Eventually Mr. Baringhauss responded over

1B a telephone call. Ha sald that they weran't awars
19 |[of how they could create those creases in the

ig manufaeturing Procesa.

21 0. And the other items on this llat assigned
22 to T.I., wera they complaeted by T.I. at scme point
23 in tima?

24 A.  I'd have to raview each one of tham.

25 2. Theya are some that -- that don't have ;

. AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-3325
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. |anybody assigned to them. Were those tasks that

Ford was going to do at Central Labs?

A I don't know. We'd have to look aE that
gprcifically.
Q. Qkay. If you go look ‘at three pages from

the back, there's something that says
Containment/Corregtive Actlion Taske. Do you see
thatc?

Aa. Yes.

Q. Okay. And agaln, thia is still on
Mr. Reimerz' Work Plan-decuments; fisg it not?

A. It appaars to be, vaa.

Q. Thera;s a date on this of -- of Fehruary

tha 18th, 1999, corract?

- A. That'e corract.
a. Ckay. And there's a list of guesticna
about competitive vehiclas: How is the awiteh

packaged? - Is it always powered hot at all timas?
Are the gontacts open when preasure applied? What
i the fuse limit? What is being switched? Is it a
redundant switch? And that's aaaignld to AVT EESE
Comp:titive Analysis. Is AVT EESE, is that Ford
Automotive El!ctricli?

A. Yen,

Q. Ckay. And was that dona timely?

AAR COURT REPORTERS 713 466- 9325
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A. Yes, it wasa.
Q. There's a guestion aboukt: What does
speeds control FMEA say about brake switch? And

that's been assigned to Vistceon Spesd Coantrol?

A, That's correck.
Q. Okay. And was that completed timely?
A. It says it was completesd there.

D. And this ig the information vou got from
Viateon about the brake presaure switch? :

A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. &And it -mays: Spesd Conktrol FMEA.
What dees that refar to? What does the apeed
control refer to thare?

A, That would be the speed control failure

modea and effect analysis,

o. And at this time, was that ovar at
Vigteon?

A, At this time, that would ba at Vietepn,
Yas. |

G. Okay. And were you satisfied with the
information that you got back from the Viatecn
pacple on Fhat task lram?

A. Yas. -

g. pid you see the FMEA? And it'e listed,

tha Automatic Deactivation am 2 current dealgn

AL COURT REBORTERS 713 466-9325
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contrel for 66 gifferent potential cause/mechanigal
failursas.

A I didn't see that persorally, noc.

Q. Wae the -- the-speed coantrel, Visteon's
apeed ¢ontzol FMEA, shared with Taxas Inatruments?

A. I den't know if it was or nokt.

. If I wanted to find that cut, who should I
ask at Pord? That would be Mr. Kohl?

Aa. I think that would prab;hly be somebody at
Texas I[natrument that would be able to say that for
BUY® . -

0. Would you defer to Texas Instruments on
whether or not they waxe proevided that by Ferd?

A. I -~ In fact, I'm not sure whether that
would be something that would be provided to Texas
Instrémentu aince they were a component supplier.

Q. Why wouldnt't you provide that Eo Texas
Ingtruments as a cemponeat supplier? Iax it
proprietary?

#. It would be considersd propristary.

Q. And Ford policy prohibitad aharing that
with Taxas Instruments, did it not?

A, I'm not sufe that Ford pelicy pfahihita
sharing that information. But informaticon that's

proprietary ie considered before it's handed over to

ARA COURT REPORTERS 713 46&6-5315
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[2nybody.
Q. All right.  It's typigcally not done.
Am -- am I correct about that?
A, It's typically ndt done .
Q. And you don't know of any reason why that

would've been parted £rom in thils case, do you?

A. That's correct.

Q. New, thera's another task on the next page
about one-third way down. It says: Do all Pord
applicatloneg have awitch connected to hot at all
times? And this is again assigned to AVT EESE. And
was this completed timely?

A. Yas, it was.

Q. Dkay. And deo you recall what the response
was, what the anawer was?

A. The answer is yes.

Q. And who at -- on your group did the actual

invegtigation of that?

A. That probakly would've been Mr. Mastera'
group.

Q. Now, if you look at the bottom there's
a -- a guestion on the same page: Why ia this

swltch connectad to hot at all timeg? That'E

ageigned to Vviatson. Am I right?

A. . That's correct.

AAA COURT REPOCRTERS 713 456-2325 _
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a. Okay. And it's been complated. They
respond: Because the 8DS. Now, what is [sic.) Sbhs
starid for?

A. SEystam Design Specificatkiana,

a. And what is that document?
A. It's a documenkta thalt says what

gspecificaticone the system muat ba dagigned to.
Q. Have you seen that documenta? Did you see

it during ycocur iovestlgation?

A. No, I &id not.

(n] Have you evef seen iE?

A. I don't believa that I have.

0 Do you khow whether it waz provided to

Texas Instrumaentar?

A. I don't know that it was.
Q. Is this something that would be consildered
proprietary?
A, Hﬁ. it would not be.
Q. Do you know, in preparing for the

depoaition, hiva you maen a copy of itC?
A. No, I have not.
MR, MAYER: Mr. Feenay, I don't
believe that's been ﬁraducad to us. B¢ that wou}d

be ancther documentas I would requast and we'll pend

‘you a letter raguesting that.

AAR COURT REPORTERS 713 455-9335
9507 Jones Rpad, He. 363, Houston, Texaeg 77065
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Q. And who is responeible for preparing the
8D8 for the '%1, '92 Panther platform? Wheo would be
reaponsible for preparing that document?

A. It would've been -- I'; not sure who that
would be for the -- for that time period.

Q. It would've been Ford though, bhecause
there was no Viateon at that time?

A. That's correct.

Q. Da.yau know whether it would've been in
Chassls'ur would it have been Electrical or would it
be Brakes? )

A. I don't know whare that would be
necenaarily, no.

g. And if you turn the page, it =ays: B3D3
(C-0068) stakss: The atop lamp switch and radundant
deactivator eswltch must be on the eame fused
circuit. 1Is that a reference to a portion of the
80572

A. ¥ep, it ism.

Q. Okay. Did you see that portion of the SDS
in your investigation?.

A. No, I did not. I believe what Visteon was
telling us when tﬁeylrepurtud pack on these factse,

like wo triad to belleve all of our other team

membars,

AAA CQOURT REPORTERSES 713 466-8325
9597 Jonea Road, No. 363, Houston, Texas 77045




10
11
12
13
14
15
1l
17
18
19
29
il
232
.23
24

25

Q. Okay. Look further down the page. It
pays: Is'lt acceptable to jumper out the eswitch as
an lmmediate centainment. What doee jumper out the
switch mean? ‘

A. 1'm not exacktly sure as far as the
terminalegy there. But I believe the idea was to
unplug the switech from the circuit and put a wire
acroad the terminalas of the connector sc that the
switch would be ocut of the circuit.

Q. All right. And Visteon ;aspands: That's
not posaible and the cite thse SDS that prohibits
that?

A. That's correct.

Q. Then it sayes underneath that: Elimination
gf"thia Ffeature reguilres the concurrence of the 0GC.

Ie that Ford's 0ffice of General Couneal?

A, That'sa corract,
Q. Do you know why that requirad?
A. BEecauge thig is a pafaty issue that wa

would be.denling with, Bliminating the redundant

switeh would open up an FMEA issue that had

previoualy been defined as critical to customer

safety and taking that switch out would then open
suraelvea up to cusetomer safsty lassuas.

Q. Did -- Did your team's consideration of

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 4R6-%325
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jumpering out the switch go to the Office of General

Counsel or it never got that far?

A.. We didn't find it necegeary to g¢ to them
for a obvious anewar. |

Q. And then it'e says: 'Other recommendations
for immedlate containment, add a fuse batween the
#top lamp fuse and the bkrake presauvre switch, And
that's liated as cngoing. When was that completed?

A. Certalnly, it wae completed by th; time we
did the recall.

Q. Ckay. Now, a couple of times in the
deposition you've gald that you were not able ko
share information with Texas Instruments because
there was litlgation between the two companies.
Hera.you instructed not to give infonrmation to Texas
Instruments by anybody? |

‘ a. I've been ipstructed to cease
communications with Texas Instruments except 1n the
prngunca of my counsal,

Q. And when was that instruction given to
you? |

A. When wa first became involved with the
Gonzales gase,

Q. Do you remambar whethay that was in the

year 20007

AAR COURT REPQRTERS 713 4£86-~9325
9597 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Taxae 77065
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A Ne. That was in 19239,

Q. And do you recall when 1in 1999 you got
that instruction?

A. It would've bean mid to early 1%23895.

Q. Okay. And who gave you the instruction,

juat their name?

a. I bellave --

Q Was that Mr. Lampe cor was that --
A, I belisve it was H?. ﬁanske.

o Dkay.

(Exhibit No. 30 marked.)

q. Let me hand you what's been marked as
Exhikit 30 and ask vou 1f you have seen this
documant before? This looks like it'a E-mail from
somebody ﬁamed J, Joyge to Steva Relmers with a copy
to you and it's dated the 18th ef February, 13395,

A. Yeﬁ.

Q. Okay. And looks like from the header you

actually printed off thim E-Mall an February 22ad,

13359,

A. That'ﬁ correct.

'a. Okay. Who 1s Mr. Joyce?

A. He's anobh;r sngineer at Ford Motor
Company.

o. Okay.

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-2325
$597 Jones Road, No. 263, Houston, Texas 77065
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A. Works on brake systems,

0. All right.  And what was his involvement
in the investigation?

A, He was a resource to understand
information about the brake Bystem.

Q. In particular, he was amked to calculate
what pressures would be at various parts of the
hrake line, corresct?

A, Yes, he wn;.

Q. Okay. And he was a specialist at Feord who
Ford felt had the tachnical knowledge to assist the
team in that ingquiry, corrxect?

A. That's what we thought, yes.

Q. Okay. Did you later learn that he did not
hava that tachnical axpertiss?

A. I'm not sure that his expertise really is
in fluid dynamic: and what the pressures are going
throuvgh a -- thrnﬁgh a line.

Q. Why do you say thaé?

A. Bacause that's not what hise dagree ia in.

.Q. Did you know that at the time you asked
him or somebody on your team asked him to amsiat?

AL No, I did nﬁt.

-Q. Have you had somebody else from Ford's

Brake Department look at the same thinge you asked

AAA COURT REFPORTERS 713 466-9325
9597 Joneg Read, No., 363, Housrcon, Tgxaﬂ 77065
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Mr. Joyce to lock at to gee if he was correct?

A, No, we did not.

o. Do you know sitting hare today whether the
information contained in thilaes exhibitms 12, in facrc,
correct?

A. I believe what's containad is Mr. Jeyce's
epeculation. ]

C. And have you had any technical training inm

brake or bhrakm EBYysEtems?

A, Mo, Bilr.

Q. Has Mr. Joycé?
A. Mx. Jayce.haa had same experiance with

brake aystems.
Q. Okay. What is it about the information in

here that you bellave is -- Well, let me withdraw.

Have you teld Mr. Jeycs you don't bellisve the

informaticn contained in thie exhibits is accurate?
A, ME. Jayce has told me that this ins
information that he had gathared from various
uaurcaa-£nd thae -=- t£hat in -- that thera ign't any
real data that bake {(aia.] -- that h#cks this up.
E; Okay. So this would be discussion as
cppcsed to data, likg we talked about y=astarday?
A. That'e correct.

Q. And when you learned that, .did you then

ARA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
9597 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Teéxas 77065
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ask someone from Pord to go and gather some data on

thils issue?

A. Na, we did not.
Q. Why not?
A Hecause we subpaguently lsarned that brake

fluid did break into the Lrake pressure awitch and
that chat could cause fires.

Q. Hag Ford cqncludad that pressures In it's
ARS8 and traction contreol syatsm have no effect
whatsoever on the wear of the EKapton in the switch?

A, It's our undérstandiang that that's the
cdge based on the trand data fr&m othar Town Cars
through -- through othar years and other vehicle
lines that alsc use the ABS aystem alocng wikh
traction contrel.

Q. Ia that based eptirely on the trend data
that we talked about yesterday?

A. Yas, amlr.

Q. Has Ford done any testing to substantiate
that, to yﬁur knowledge?

A. The Erand dati apeaka for itself.

Q. 8o the anawers is: Ford's done no brake
testing or no analysiﬁ tc substantiate ita belief
that the ABS pressauresa and traction control

pressures have any effect on the life of the Kapton?

: AAMA CQURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
9597 Jones Road, Na. 383, Houston, Texas 77085
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A The analysis of the trxend data says that
those things de not have an effect on the life of
the Kapton.

Q. What 18 it about the analysis of the trend
data that tells you that?

A, The fact that Town Cars, Crown Vic, Grand
Marquis that are using the same ABE tractien control
syetem 1n subseguent model years are not having
fires under hood --

Q. Any --

A. -- the brake pressure switch.

Q. Anyrhing ela??

A. All the other vehilcle lines are not
experiencing the same problem either.

Q. But you tgld me yeeterday, Hr.-Farter.
that evan batwean the Crown Viec and the Town Car
thay're differant walghts ana, therefore, diffarent
Preasaures in the hrakipg sywtem, Do you recall
that?

F I sald those were pospibilitias of what
wuqld axpluin.thu difference betweeaen the Town Car
and the Crown VYic, Grand Harquis.

Q. Ia the parﬁu spec the same daspite the
fact that there are different waights involved in

the two vehiclas?

ARR COURT REPORTERS 713 466-5325
8597 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Texas 77065
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cantrol pressures have nothing to do with life of
the Kapton bamesd on anything cother than the Erend

daca, as we've discussed here today?

control effecta are contained within the life as
gpecified in the part for the -- in the

specificaticn.

500,000 cyeles at 1450-pei at a range tamperatuxe of
135 degrees C is substantially enough for ABS and

kraction centrol.

that was tested on the Crown Vie, Grand Marquis from
which that data was coﬁcluded tﬁat brought up

252,000 miles aa the life on that -- for that teast.

|going to ask you: What teste did Ford run to
substantiaste that? And I understand it, it's the
Crown Vic study that you and I heve talked about

before?

A Yes, they are.

g. Iz your belief that the ABS and traction

A. I beli=eve that the ABEZ and traction

. Explain that to me, if you would.

A I'm saying that the apecification of

Q. Whae --

A. That is what was also part of the system

Q. You anticipated wmy next gquesticen. I was

12882

A. Yes .

AAA COURT REPQORTERS 713 466-9325
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o. Okay. And that study 1ls dated when?

A. 1982,

Q. Are you aware of any other studies on that
topic?

a. Ro.

a. All righe., And tha-infcrmatiun that you

were provided by Mr. Joyce, what did vou do with itz
a. I reviewed it.
Q. You discussed it with him?
A. Discussed it with him,
Q. And you -- you found out that he wasn't --

he wasn't all that confident in it; 1a that --

A. I found out that there were imauea with it
that -- that we -- that -- that were, again, not
|baged necesmarily on data; but what -- what his --

his thoughts were.

Q. Ckay. Ia tha -- I traction control
and -- Wail, let's do them ene at a time. I8
traction contrel standard in.tha Crown Vig?

A. I don't recall that at this moment.

Q. Is tractinﬁ control standard in ths

Linceoln Town Car?z

A. At the wvary moment --
Q. No. I mean, in the '31, '82Z.
A. I undersrand. And right now I'm drawing a

AAA COURT REFORTERS 713 466-9335
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blank on chat,.

Q. Okay. You would defar to the documents?
A. I'd defer to the documents.
Q. All right. Now, cne of Mr. Joyce's

statements 'in this E-Mall is, he's talking about;
Since I'm not aure which -- the third paragraph --
S8ince I_am not sure of where the pressure wikch is
hydraulically connected, I'll giva you preasures at
nedes. And states: [ do kpew. What is arncde?

A. I believa that what he's talking about are
points in the system.

q. Okay. The woret céase for the ewitch would
be the -- would be to be connected betwean the HCU.
What deoes HCU stand for?

A, In a AES system, that would bm a hydraulic
contrel unit.

G- And was that on the '52, '923 Linecoln Town
Caxr?

A. That would be with an ABS -- if they had

‘|ABS units, ves.

©. Would that be aomething that would be
shown aﬁ that achematic?

A. Ne, it is ﬁut.

Q; Ig' 1t under hood?

A. It is under hood.

AAA COURT REPGRTERS 713 466-3325
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Q. Ckay. Would vou look at the schematic and
see if you eould take a highlighter and mark where
ic 187

ME. FEENEY: I'm sorry. I miased
thie. What are you asking him to do right now?

ME. MAYER: To show me whare the HQU
ig in the wvehicle that he's teatified is preasent,

MR. FEENEY: In tha 199327

MR. MAYER: Yes,:sir.

A, I donft sems a call-out fer that in the
schamatic,

Q. Do you know from your general knowledge of
the vehicle where it would be? And 1f you do, just.

cake a pen and mark ic?

A. I -- I -- 1 really can't. I mean, they --
Q. That'se not an area you're familiar with?
A, Not realliy. And these drawings don't

necaunnriiy have all the -- all the pimces that are
under hood in them .either. | |

ﬁ. Gkay; .I'11 go back to hls asmsntence. The
worst case for the ewitches would be to be connected
between the HCU and the prop valve. I take that's
proportional valve?

A. Yes.

Q. -- whick i3 wheare I think it 1la. Pid 1

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 4&b6~-9312Z5
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Tead the correctly?

A, I naeed to catch up with your here. I'm
gorry, Which paragraph were we cn?
2. It'e one, two, three, four paragraphs. It

begins witﬁ a: 8ince 1I'm not sura.

A. Okay.

Q. See? -And his last sentence aaya: The
woret case for the gwitch would-ba'~- would ba to be
connacted betwean thé HCU --

aA. Oh-huh.

Q. -- and the prap valve, which is where I

think it is. Okay?

A. Ckay.
Q. 0id you diascuasa that with Mr. Joyca?
A. Not before he wrote thise.

Q. I know., But afterwards, did you discuass
it with him?

A. I mentionad that 1t was not between those

|two locations.

Q. Okay. VWhere is it?

A.. IE's on the other sida of the prop valve
Erom there.

. "And eo you datermined that the analyaiq
that ha had done hare was not raally relevant?

A. Correct.

AAM COURT REPORTERS 713 455-9%25
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Q. Does he give you the presaurea akt nodes
and states on the other side of the praportiecnal
valve that would relate to where the brake pressure

switch is connected?

A. Na, ha &id not.

g. Did you aek him to do that?

A. Yes.

g. And did he provide that teo you?

A, HQ was unable ko do that.

Q. Why was he unable to do 1t?

a. Bacausae agaié. this wasn't bamed on data.
This was based on -- on knowledge he had collected

and, therefore, the gpeclfic vehicle would not be
applicahie toe what his declaicns -- or what his
kn;wledge would ba.

Q. And did you ask him to see if he could
collecst that data through tasting?

A. ﬁo, we did net.

0. And why nct?

A, B;¢au-= he doean't have veahicles avallable
te him to do thﬁt.

b. Well, you had vehicles available to You,
did vou not, gir? |

A, We had a vehicle that we had.

Q. Well, I thought we read earlier that Che

AAAR COURT REPORTERS 713 465-9325
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we - -

A. Coat was not an issue,

a. So are you telling us you only had one

vehicle to look at for thie antirxe invesetigatiocn:

a. No. We only had one vehicle that we
needed to look -- to use for this investigation.
Q. The r=ality is, you made a dacimion it

waun'& really that relevant and you didn*t ask
anybody to do the test, right?
MR. FEE&EY& Argumantative.

g. You can anawer.

.A. This ~-- This was not really test
information. Again, this waa gathering background
tn-see i1f we could see understand what it was that
was happening in the system that may have resulted
in braksa preggure ywitches ultimately leaking and
gtarting firea.

Q. 80 the answer to my guestion was: It
really wasen't that relevant to you. &0 you didn'c
ask him to go uuﬁ and create a tept to measure the
pressures at the various nocdas and states where thé
break pressure awitcﬁ wvag connacted. Am I right
about that?

A. It 18 not -- was not relevant to ua,

AANA COURT REPQRTERS 713 455-9325
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eepecially in light of the trend data which shows

that the Town -- the Town Car, Crown Victoria do neot
have the preoblem in Qubaequent years.
MR, MAYER: Object, nonresponaive.
2. Did yeu aek anyonms to do the test,
Mr. Porter?

A. I believe I answered your gquestich.

g. And.the angwer l1ls no, corract; you ﬁidn't
think it was neceagary?

A, I did not think it was in necesmaary which
showe that subsequent ¥ehicles uailng the aame ABS
and traction control syetema éid not have a problem.

. When you lsarned that Mr. Joyce's
lnformation here was more of a discussien ag opposed
to"data, did you ask anyone else at Ford whether in
the entire Ford Motor Company aumebudf had gone out
and measgured ARS8 and tractisn cnnt?nl prassures
throughout a brake asystem to datermine what thosge

praessureas were?

A. It was not necessary.

Q. The anawer ié: ¥You naver agked anycone,
correckt?

A. We did nnt.aﬂk anybady bacause it waa not

relevant on the trand data that we have collected.

Q. Well, you're not a brake expart. You've

AAA COURT REFORTERS 713 466-3325
§5%7 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Texas TTUES




10

11

12

13

14

15

1ls

17

18

19

20
21
22
23
24

25

165

already admiﬁted that., Why de you balisve it wasn't
neceasary, Mr., Perter?

A. Becauge 1554 Town Cars do not have a
praoblem with brake pressures switches catching fire.
o. Now, how did Mr. Joyee get the initial
regquest? Who 1s the one chat asked him to look up

this information that he provided?

A. I belleve Et&ve Reimera did.

Q. And did you tell Mr. Reilmers that you 4id
not belisve the information you received from
Mr. Joyue was, ln fact, reliable information?

A. I don't know what_my discussion was with

Mr. Reimers on that.

Q. Do you rsecall one way or the other?
i A. I den't recall one way or the other,
a. Did you provide any of thias information in

thers exhibit to Texas Instruments?

A. ‘I don't know whather we Qavn this Lo Texas
Insetruments or not. | |

ﬁ. Would you defar to Texag Instruments
whather you prafided this to tham?

A, ﬁertainly, if they cama up with a copy of
it, |

Q. During the entire investigaticn that you

ware in charge of, ara you aware of any information

AAA CQURT REPCRTERS 713 466-5325
5537 Jones Road, No. 383, Houston, Texas 77063
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lother than this exhibit that discusses whak the

presgures are at varicus places in the brake system?
A. There is a deocument that shows what the

brake pressurea were measured on the Town Car that

we had.
@. All right. )
A. And that was measured at the brake

presaura switech.

Q. And when was that done?
A, That was done sometime in 1999,
Q. and where --"'where was that done, at Ford?
A, It was done in Dearborn.
a. One of the Ford lazboratoriea did that?
A. I think it was done on a test track.
Q. Okay. And did yeu ask that that be done?
A. Yes, we did.
Q. And was thare a formal report ilsmsued that

datalled what the prassures wezre at the brake
jreﬁﬂura ewltch? .

A. Thers were charcs that were presanied,
yes,

Q. | And did you provide that information to in
Mr. Joyce? |

A. I baliave wa slowed Mr. Joy¢e that

infprmatian.

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9315
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. And what dld the inform -- what did the
test reveal? |

A. The teat revealed that various braking
pressures, braking characteristics, that the.
pressures that were being experienced at the brake
preasuxre awitch were well within those that were

identified in the specification.

Q. Anything elaa?

A. Na.

Q. And did you provide that test ta Téxas
Instruments? i

A, I balieve thoae charts were-provided to

Texas Inatrument.

Q. Did you provide them or somebody on your
team did? |

A, I believe Steva provided those -- Steve
Reimers provided these te Taxas Inatrumant.

Q. What is that last number, Mr. Porter?

a, 3¢Q. |

{Exhibit No. 31 marked.)

Q. Let me hand you what's beesn marked as
Exhibit 31 and ask you if you've seen thia document
before? This appears to be an B-Mall that you
printed cut on March 4th, 19%%. Am I righc?

A. That would be correct.

AADN COURT REFORTERS 713 466-5325
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Q. Okay. Do you recall receiving this
E-Mail?
A. Not at the time, but certainly reviewing

it here, yes,.

Q. Po you have any reaaon to doubt the report’
that Mr. LaRouche is making concerning this
investigation?

A. No, we did nct.

0. And am I correct, theué were sAwltches that

somepody asked him to cut open and analyze?

A. Yes. -

o. Do you know where those sewitches came
from?

A, I believe these awltches may have come

frem junk yardas.

. But you mentioned sarlier today whera you
knew thers were some junk yard switches that ware
examined?

A. cgr;tct.

0. And do you know what parts kthey ware?

A. I bqli&ve thase would've beasn Town Car
parte. _

Q. Okay. Was ﬁhere an actual report thakt waa
issusd other than this on the disaaction?

- I don't recall if there wae or aot.

ALR COURT REPORTERS 713 466-932E
9557 Jonasg Road, No. 363, Houstan, Teaxas 77065




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18

15

20
21
22
23
24

- as

lg®

Q. Have you geen cne?
) A, I don't remembsr seelny a report.
0. And in these -- on these thrae switches,

am I correct that Mr. LaReouche determined that there
wags corrosicn in the switches, but nene of the
gswitches showed avidence of di;phragm lsakage on the
test sample?

A. That's correct.

Q. Ckay. Now, ;hen he Qays: NHone of thege
pwitches showed evidence of diaphragm leakage on the
test stand, do you kno% what he's referring to
there, what the test stand iae? |

A, I believs thefe was a piace of egquipment
that Texas Instrument loaned us that was uased for
deing leak tests that Texas Instrument had deasigned.

Q. And was Mr. LaRouche scomebady that was on

vour team?

A. He was. Did'I put him thera?
Q. I don't think ynﬁ put him on that --
A, Yes. He's the first one aftar Taxas

Instrumenta there.

Q. Yeah., Okay. And hie specialty |is
Metallurgy Section?

A. He's in the Metallurgy Sactlion at Central

babs.

AAMA COURT REPORTERS 713 4EE-39325
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Q. Did yeu share this information with Texas

Instrumenta=
A. I believae wa talked about LiE, vyes.

With whom at Texas instruments?

A. It would've been during a8 team meeting.
Q. Bo probably a8 Aziz Rahman?
A Aziz Rahman or Andy MeGuirk.
(Exhibit No. 32 marked.}
Q. L;t me hand you what's been marked as

Exhikbit 32 and ask you if this is a copy of an

E-Mail sent to you in -- on May the 8&th of 159%%
A. That'sa what it's saye, yeas.
a. Ckay. 2And it's a -- It's really =&

ccellaction of E-Mails, looks like freom Steve Reimers

at the bottom and then from Steve Reimexrs to a group

of people on the top. Have I read that correctly?
A. That appears to be the case, why.
Q. I. want to direct yuur == your attention to

numathing in the middle of the -- of the page where
it reada: I juac FTP 27 tast fllea to ydu and one
excel spread sheet describing the testlfuna. MPG
will try to p:rfurm the low mu testing on Tusaday
morning? Do you knuﬁ what that refers tCe.

Mr. Portexr?

A. Which part of that?

AARA COURT REPCRTERS 713 455—9%25
35%7 Jones Road, No. 163, Houston, Texas 77055
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Q. I just FTP 27 test filea.

A, I believe FTP is a computer term for
transferring Files to peocple.

Q. Okay. And then MP3E, ims that Michigan
Eroving Grﬁunds?

A, I believe that's Michligan Proving SGrounds,
yea,

0. What is the -- perform the low mu tastlag

on Tuesday morning?

A. That is, perform bhrake tesating on a lew mu
aurface. )

Q. What is a low mu surfaca?

A, That'a a ﬂurface that you would find in

a -- when you're braking on ice or water that would

cause an ABS evernt.

Q. Okay. Ia this something that you asked
the Michigan Proving Ground people to work on?

-A. ﬁall. I asked Steve Reimers ta work on it,

Q. And was the purpose? What wars you aeking
him to try to figure out?

A. To generate the charts that we'wve
previously diacuaaadﬁ

Q. The ABS -- The preaaﬁfas that the awiﬁch
ran iz the ABS event?

A. That'a correct.

AAA COURT REPCRTERS 713 455—9325
9597 Jenes Road, No., 363, Houaton, Taxas 77065




10

11

12

13

14

1ls

16

17

ile

19

a0

21

22

23

24

25

172

a. Qkay. And so this fellow, John Morris at
the Michigan Proving Ground, was he the one that
agtually did the work?

A. I don't kneow if he is or not.

Q. Okay. There's a reference in here to a
brake cleaning fluid, that they should hé checked to
gee if it can harm a brake prasgaure switch. Why did
you want that done?

A. hg;in, during the investligaticon we ware
going through, what are all the possibilities of
what -- what ¢ould cause a2 problem. We didn't know
whatlprnhlems that there might've been with the
awiteh and we ware loocking at all the different
agpects of what we could think of that might've had
an effect on tha Rapton life.

Q. Ckay. And whar di#f you think brake
cleaning £luid -- What -- What wam your -- I guess,
theory? . _ |

aA. We had no speclfic thndry, just that we
knew that that was something that could bs bought in
the a!tarmarkat;

o. There's a reference at the bottom of the
firwt paragraph to an oxylaﬁe saurce, o-x-y-l-a-t-e&
Bource. Do you see that?

A, Yags.

AARR COURT REPORTERS 713 466-83125
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: Q. Okay. Wae there some concern that scme
cxylate may be getting in the brake pressure
switches?

. A, We -- Puring geme of the analysin, the
chemical aﬁalysis, therae wag material rhat was

described as an oxylate that nobeody could uanderstand

where that came from.

0. Okay. Did you eventually find out what
th;t wak? |

A, We don't know what that is.

Q. Not avan tudiy? |

A. Correct.

Q. Okay. Now, there's a referencs hgre in
this -- in the E-Mail and I think it's from
Mr. Reimers, If says: At MPG last wesk -- Michilgan

Proving Ground last week I obperved the mechanic
uging it to clean the master zylinder ressrvoir
exterior in the area around the BP -- Which I assums
ia brake pressure gwitch -- where the brake £luid
had besn dripping. Dbid he talk to you about seeing
that machania:cleuning.tha area around the brake
prepsure gwiktah?

A. He may have mentiomed that to me.

Q. Do you have any regollection of it today?
F Not really, no.

AAX COURT REFCGRTERS 713 466-9325
9537 Jones Reoad, No. 363, Houston, Texas 77065
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1 ] Q. Okay. Y¥You ~- ¥Yau're -- Ibk's based on whar
. : 2 you're reading?

k| A. That's correct.

4 Q. Okay. And do you know exactly whak the --

5 how the -- how the mu testing wag set up?

& A. No, I de¢ not.

7 Q. Mr. Reimera would be best perscn to aak

8 about that?

g A. Mr. Morris may be the best person to ask

1¢ about that.

11 {Exhiblt No. 33 marked.)

12 Q. Okxay. Let ma hand you what'a heen marked

13 aa Exhibit 33 whieh appearsd to he a Summary document
. 14 created on or abkoub the Ath of March, 1993, I'm

15 gatting the date from the bottom of the document.
16 . |Dg you see that?

17 A. Yan.

ils Q. Ckay. And it indicates that tﬁe Summary
18 |was prapar&d by somebody name J. Kafadl and I think

20 you've listad him as gomebody on your team; is that

221 corract?
22 A. That's correct.
213 0. This document ia part of the trend data

2d that vou ware talking about earliar in the

25 depogition?

g
AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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A. This document would be a -- some Summary
of the early trend analysis that was being done.

Q. Okay. And there are notes, handwritten
nu&ea, on this in the upper right. Is Lthat your

handwritiné, Mr. Porter?

A. It could be.

O. Does it lock like your handwriting?

A. It looks 1like it.

0. And theese are notes that you were writing

in a meeting?

A. That's correct.

Q. Ckay. And I guess Mr, Kafadl was bringing
you scme of the trend data and you were aaking him

guestiona about it?

A, Correct,
Q. And one of two -~ You had two questions
that are written on the page: One, do all thase

have apoed control?
| A. That'm correct.

Q. Why did you want to know that?

A He wanﬁed to know if they had speed
control and, theraefore, was the brake pressure
awiﬁch one of the candidates for the causs of a
fire.

Q. And what response did you gat back from

ARA COURT REPQRTERS 7123 466-35325
‘ 3557 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Texza 77065
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lhim on tha data cocntained en Exhibix 237

A. 1 -- 1 recall -- Or I don't recall
gspecifically, but I think the answear from thé
reuulés are that -- that we did the recall on these
parts 1is thart yes, they did.

Q- Okay. Am I correct, what you wanted to
know £frem him waeg, of the 46 reporta that are listed
here, for example, how many of thess vehicles had

epead contkrel on them?

A Correct.

Q. Okay. And d; you Trecall being fold they
all did or you -- yau.dnn't have a recollection?

A, I don't have a reccllectica.

. Okay. And then I asgsume those same
quéntians would be -- that -- that same gquestion

would be guestiona asked about some of the ather
data. He says that 30 vehlcles reported engina
unkﬁawu and he givea -- he does a breakdown. Same
qﬁéstian: You wantaed to know whethar those had
spead control?

A Wae prﬁbahly wouldn't deo it in that formact.
It was probably 3 more generic question of --

Q. Okay.

A. - ﬁa you know how many of these pleces

have mpeed control?

AAA COURT REFORTERS 713 466-9325
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Q. And you've alac written -- your second
note is5: Alr suspension. Am I right, you wanted to
know whether the vehicles that he was reporting with

car fires had alr suspension on them?

A, That's correct.

Q. Qkay. . In March of 19997

A. That's correct.

Q. And what infnrmatian did you get back from

him about whether chese had air auspension on them?

A, Most of them did not.

G- And when you say air suaspension, ia that
the alr suspenaicn motor and relay-that we have heen
talking abeout that you markea on the gxhibit?

A, That's -- I didn't mark -- Well, yeah, I
gquesa I did.

It'e that same --
Yes,
-~ gomponant?

Corract.

Lo T« T T &

. Kho manufactures that component?
A. I balimve that's manufactured Ly a cocmpany

name Toklko.

Q. And is i1t purchaaed in assembly?
A. Yes.
Q. From whom?

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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A. From Tokiko.

THE COURT REPORTER: Spell it,

please,
Q. Caﬁ vou apell that for him?
THE WITNESS: T-o-k-1-k-0.
Q. And have you evar become aware of

complaints by Ford customeras that that Tokiko
equipment 1ls suaceptible to filre?
A. Not on the 1§%2 -- or '$C -- yeah, '%2,

'933 Town Car, no.

Q. Have you hearXd it on other vehicle lines?
A. As I explained earlier, on the 19EB4
Mark VII.
Q. Other than that --
A, Cther than thakt, no.
Q. -- ha?eﬁ't heard abeut it? Okay. Why did

you pose the guastlon, Mr. Porter, about speed
control and air sugepension? Were those two cf the
leading candidatas at thisg time in your mind for the
cauge of these fires?

A, Clearly. our investigation wase concerned
about speed contrel. That's what our Fask force was
put together to identify. 8So obvicusly, Lf speed
contrcl was not on thase wvehicles, than that would

be a reason to help rule our the speed control

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
9597 Jonesa Road, No, 363, Houston, Texas 77065
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?witch 28 being part of the problem. I'm neot sure
why I asked about alr suspenslon other than
remembering the axperlence from the 1587 -- or at
the 1984 vehicles and just making sure that that was
not part of the cause.

0. Okay. And as I recall, what you gaid is
Mr. Kafadi, you believe, at some point in time got

back to you on alr suspension and indicated that

‘|meget of the vehicles involved did not have ie?

A. Correct.
2. But they were '92, '$3 Lincola Town Cars,

were they not?

A. No. These are Crown Vie, Grand Marquis.

Q. Okay. And ieg's -- it's not on the Crown
Vie?

A. It's an optlen.

. Ie it on the Lincoln Town Ca;s?

A, Yes, it is.

Q. 80 one differance betwean'thp Crown Vics

and Grard Margquilis and the Lincalne are, the Crown
Vica don't have alr auspepsian and the Lincolans do?
A: That's trusa.
Q. In the 15982, '93 Panthar platform?
A. Corzect,

(Exhibit NC. 34 marked.}
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Q. Let me hand you a document that's been
marked Exhibit 34, And it has a -- some
handwriting. It says: Delivery to Andy M. Which I
is Andy McGuirk, 3-1i0-9% by Fard.l Do you sese that?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you recall a document like this being

1t mximtence at Ford in March of 1998957

A, Tma.

Q. Dkaf. It says: PFotantial actione, does
it not?

A It does. )

Q. Ckay. Is this a documsnt aowmebody in
your -- on your team put together?

A. Yeas.

Q. Ckay. Do you know who on your tean would

be reaponsible #£or this?

A. No, I'm ﬁa; sure who 1t was.

Q. And do you gee that thers's a key at the
Euttum. a black box mmans it'a fixed; and a whire
box meaning it'as improved?

A. Yesg, I do.

0. Dkéf. Do you knoew what thome refaear to
whan it sayas "fixaed®? |

A. Yag. “Fixed" -~-

2. Can you tell uas?

AAR COURT REPFQRTERS 713 £6£-2325
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A. "Fixed" means that inp the presence of a

faulty brake preseure awiteh, a fire will be

eliminated.

u.- Okay. And improved means --

A. That in the -- in the presence of a faulty
brake awitch, the flre may nct -- oxr be leasz chance

of a fire, but may not been totally eliminated.

Q. And ware you satiafied that the
ingarmatinn contained on Exhiblt 34 was accurate?

A. Glven the information we had at the time,
yes,

Q. And did you revise Exhikit 34 at some
peint in time that you're aware of?

A. No, we did act.

Q. Did --

A. It was not necesgsary. Again, we did

finally ceme to the conclusion that the hrake

preagure switches wezre causing the fire and this was
not needed tc back up that ianform -- that

informatien. Thie wag just looking at & varlety

lof -- of potential actions that we could take and

comparing them against what we had been led to
balieve ware the potential causes for -- for the
fires.

Q. | I -- I thought you teold me this was a

AAR COURT REPCRTERS 713 4£6-5335
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|document that assumed the brake pressure switch was

failing and there were elther an improvement or a
fix that wia going to be assigned to it,, correct?

A, That'a true.

a. ékay. Sc this documents assumes that the
brake premssure awitch 1s failing; it's not something
you learned later. When you created this document
you knew the brake praesaure switch or t hought Che
brake pressure wimp was alresady failing; these are

ways to protect from that?

A. That's correct.
0. okay.
A. If the brake pregasure switch is not

meeting the life --
T Q. Right.

A. -- mxpectation, then this would be
gomething that you could do.

Q. Okay. This is something similar that wyou
would do in a D-PMBEA, right?

A. No, I donr't think sco.

o. How 18 1t different?

A. This is something that you would do in a
8-D or 14-D prohlem lnvestigation.

Q2. How -- How is that differant than what you

would for a D=-FMEA?

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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A. A D-FMEA takes itemsg -- assigné severity
‘tu those items, agsigns a probability to those
ltems, assigns a potential for detecting what those
problems are and helps to halance or weligh what
those isaues are for the design overall and guides
the enginaers as to what they nesd to do to fix it.

2. Aren't you also suppoaed to lcok at
potential solutions te those preblams that ariase?

A, No. Yeu're supposed to come up with

eclutions to those problems that arise.

o. And evaluate -tham?
A, You're aupposed te implemant them.
Q. And so how La this different? Ian't

this -- Don't you have sclutione here on the rtop
that are either going to be fixes or improvements if
they're implemented? Isn't that what this chart ie?

A. This 18 the results -- what the rasults
would be 1f thoae things were implemented, but this
is not an FMEA. |

| Q. Okay. I -- I know. I didn't say it was.

I'gaid, isn't it like an FMEA?

A. it'a not like an FMEA aither.

e. Okay.

{Exhibit Ho..35 marked.)

Q. Let me hand you what's been markad as

AAD COURT REFORTERS 713 466-9325
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Exhibit 35, This appeara to be an E-Mail from
someonsg named Shaun MeCarthy to you and others at

Ford dated March 15th, 199%9%; is that right?

A. No.
o. Qkay.
A, This ia E-Mail Erom Shaun McCaxthy, I

think, probabhly to himaelE.

Q. Okay. Porwarding note to -- And then --
Or forwarding note from. ‘Did you receive a copy of
this? Let's --

A. I recaived a copy of the lower porticn.

Q. All right. My questinﬁ ig: wWhat is SIT?
What is that?

A. That'e probably the initiala for
Structured Inventive Thinking.

) o. What 1e that?

A. That'e a methodology for brainstarming
ldaas.

Q. Is that a ﬁi?isinn at Ford @r a group at

Fard?

A. No.

@. . Ckay. Are theee pecple Pord ampluygea?
a. They may be.

o. Okay. Did -- Was thera a Structurad

Inventive Thinking meeting that was held in

AAA COURT REPQRTERS 713 486-9325
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connection with the under hocod fires in the '92, '93

Lincoln Town Cara?

A. Yas, there was.

Q. And did vou attends it?

A. Yes.

Q. And de you raecall who elsze attended from

Your LCeam?

A. Steve Reimarg.
Q. And was it held on or about March of 19907
A. I don't remember exactly when it was held.

It was sometime before-the recall.

2. And what was the purﬁnae of involving this
Structured Inventive Thinking in the group in the
invegtigation? |

- A. Wa wera confronted with the preblem that
we wére having brake pressure 5witﬁhsa fail,
start -- ignite, ¥We were belng told that there was
no problem with these brake pressure sewitches; that
they -- they had always passed té:ting; that there
was no reason to believe there was any iwmaue with
those. 8o we ne#dad -- wa ware looklng for some naw
ideas as to what we might be abla to do in the evant
that we.had b impleﬁeﬁt a -- a fix for NHTSA, given
that we had no solution at that peoint in time that

would resolve all the requiremants that we had for
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the sBysStem.

Q. Well, you qertainly had a bunch of fixes,
because if the you look back at Exhikhit 34, a few
days before this March 15th, SIT mesting, you had
identified at leasat one, two, three, four fixes; by
your own records, correct, Mr..Pcrter?

A. We had identified those four ideaz. Those
were not necessarily feasible to be implemented in
customar vehicles. r

Q. But they would've fixed whatever problem
you were faced with? |

A. If it was posslble to do them, they may
have fixed the problems.

Q. Now, did you ask for the Structured
Inventive Thinking group to assist? Was that
gomething you asked for or wase that thrust upen you?

Aa. I anked for it.

a. Okay. And who did you go te to reguest
that asgistance? ' -

A. I beliave that it waa -- I.bgliava it wae

Craig Stephen.

Q. And did -- Were there more than just one
meeting? |

A, I believe thera was really only one
maesting,

AAA CQOURT REPCRTERS 713 456-5%32%
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1 2. And did the lssue any kind of repert ar
. 2 conclusions?

3 A I don't know thakt they 4id, no.

4 o. Do you recall theam making any

5 .lrecommendations to ysou or your team?

6 A. They recommended that it was a hard

7 problem and theyi!d go back and think about it.
B 0. Did you get anything else from them

9 bealdes that?

10 a. No.

11 @. DPid yvou -- Did you meet with pecple othar

12 than Craig Steﬁhens? I mean, was Lt a wheole group?

13 A. I beliave there were -- there were two
. 14 pecple from the -- the SIT, including Craig.

15 - c. Do you know why it is that they only had

1g one meeting and did not provide any additional ’

17 information for you?
13 A Didn't come up with any geod ideas.
15 : Q. Did anyona from Texas Instruments

z20 participate in the SIT brainstorming group?
21 A. No, they did not.
22 Q. Did you invite anyone frem T.I. to

23 participate?

24 A No, wa did not.

25 Q. Nhy not?

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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1 &, Because we locked at this as a system
. 2 issue for the wvehicle and not neceggarily ona
3 specifically for the brake pressure swiktch itksslf;

4 but what could we do overall with the vehicle

5 that -- that we could help in the event that we had
6 a defective brake pressure switch.
7 ‘@,  And 1t was your feeling that Texas

B Inatruments didn’'t need t¢ be invelved in that type
9 of digcusgglon?
10 A That's correct., They had pretty much

11 expressed ail of their.ideas in the team meatinga.

i2 Q. What'a was the last exhibit number?
13 AL 35. |

. 14 (Exhibit No. 36 marked.)
18 . Q. Let me bhand ycu what's been marked as

16 Exhikbit 36, which looks like an B-Mail from you to
17 An&} MecGuirk.

18 A. It looks like it's from Andy McGulrk to
1% - |Stéve HBeringhause, Bryan Dague, Russ Baumann.

290 Q. Yaah. It's far -- You're correct. Ic's

21 forwarding an E-Mail that you asent. Loaok down right

22 below the --

23 A, okay.
a4 o, Da yeu see that?
25 A, Temn, g

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9125
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Q. Do you recall sending Mr. Mctulrk a E-Mail
entitled Brainstorming en or about Marxch l2th, 19997

Aa. This locks= familiar, ves,

Q. Are thege the jideas chat were -- that came
out of the 'SIT gzroup or is thim something different?

A. I think some of the these ideas were what
came from the SIT group, yes.

a. And you were sanding them te Mr. McQuirk

and asking fer his feedback on them?

Aa. Corrmct.

0. Qkay. and did.he resgpond?

A. 1 don't know that he responded in -- in --
in writing. In general, the reapcnse was that this
waa not something they could do on this -- in the

things that were associated with the speed control
gwitch; thay ware thinga that they could nct do.

Q. Did he epecify which onas that were going
to be problems to be -~ to implemant?

A. It was my understanding that they were all
going to ba problems.

.a. Did you have any diacusslons with
Mr. McGuirk that you can recall here today
spacifically about any of the suggestione that you
peat him?

A. Again, Jjust going down the list, the first

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-832°5
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one Ssays: (Cup -- OQOr coat cup with plastie¢ or
noncanductive coating, like anodizing. I seem to
recall that there was some discumsion about that and
that T.I. méy have lgoked at that and said, ﬁn, they
couldn't do that; and that Item No. 2, make the cup
cf nonconductive material, was kind of included in
thart first iltem's discuamion. Add a plastic
diaphragm between the cup transfer pin and the
Epring contack arm cavity, again, that was something
they was saiﬁ they could not do that. Place plastic
insulator disk on the cup with & hole only fcr the
transfer pln, they said that wams the s2ame proeblem as
the previous parta -- or the previous suggestion.
Replace the Kapton membrane with pure Teflon
membranes, theg maid that thse Kapton was Che
setrength material behind -- behind the Teflon, so
that wasn't practical. Raplace the Kapton seal with
the sliding pisten zeal, that was somathing that
thay could not implement in a short time periogd.
Change thea Eup canverter topocleogy, agaln, thﬁt wan
aomething that they would nct ba able to do without

changing their manufacturing line and incurring

expengse. Replace switch with a preasure transducer

and semiconductors -- and a semiconductor switch,

this was not something they could -- they could do a

AAA COURT REPORTERS 712 466-5325
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one-for-one replacement in their switch; it would

require a change to the speed control module which

would've extended the time period that a Eix.cauld
be put into place. -Dasign a thermal l1ink in the
power gupply side of the awitch that cpens at
elevated temperature, it -- it logked at that and
there waan't a good place to put where that thermal
link would be. Reverse polarity on the switch
contacts, that's one that it's not clear exactly
what that woeuld do since it etill would have power
in the switch. Insulate the plﬁstic cpat spring,
except the contact arsa, that was scomething, again,
that we were told would be something difficult to
do, Coldplate the spring contagts, that was
something they could do, but that was golng to take
time and it wasn't clear what that would reaulb in
gither. Fill the air cap in the switch housing with
petting material to aeal connector opening, that was
scmething where T,I. saxpected the awitch to be able
to breathe; and so that would restrict the --
component from Eperating.' change the awitch houaing
matarial for improved ignition parameters, that was
gomething that was lﬁuked at. A variety of plastic
matsrials were -- were brought, but even though they

had varying parameters as far as what their burn

ARAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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characterigties were, at the end of the day they all
lit with = mateh. Add another layer of the Kapton
geal, T.I. didn't believe that they could contain
that in the sandwich; that would change Eheir --
their part ' configuration. Add. a ground fault
interrupter elrcult teo the awitch, and again, thac

was going to be a long tarm time consuming projact.

Q. You left ane off.

A. Which one was that?

e. Turn off power if ground path LO case is
detected. )

A. Which one is that?

Q. Eixteen?

A, Sixteen. That says: Add ground fault
interrupter circuit to the switch. What it would do
im turn off the power if the ground path to the case
wad datected. What that was going to reguire, in a
complicated circuit that was jning to take time
and -- and we didn't have thé time to be able to put
somﬁthing 1ike that into affect. That would be
several vyears t& implement something like that.

Q. S0 it sounds to me like Texas Instruments,
when they got this list of brainstorming ideas from
you on March the 12th, did get back to you about

each and every one of them and explain te you why
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they either could not ke implemented, didn't make
genge or would not comport with the raquiraments

that Ford had for the switch?

A. And I weould say that their -

Q- Ia that right? Did they get back toc you?

A. Thelr inveagtigation intc that was about
a8 -- a8 -- as long as my reading through that list.

Q. What do yvou bage that on'?

A. Because I don't believe that ali of those

were as lmpossible as they proclaim that thay are.

c. Did you ask them in a follow-up meeting to
go through =ach cne in more detall with you?

A. That'e -- That was discusmsed in one of the
team meetings where we want through those lists.

a. Who did you discusa that with?

A, I beljeve Hndr Mc@uirk was at the meeting.
I believe there ware pecple from T.I. on the
telephone line on tha other end. |

aq. Did you tell Mr. McGuirk that you wanted.
mﬁre detall on the various brainstozms that had been
Bant?

A. No, as a matter of faet, hecausﬁ I was
starting to fesl 1ik§ I was bhelng sand --
saandbagged.

Q. Sg the anaswer to my guestion is: You

AAR CCURT REPORTERS 7131 466-9325
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didn't ask -- If you felt that the information you
ihe from Texaw Instrumenks was ilnadequate, you never
asked them to sit dnwﬁ with you and go through in
more detall why each one of the brainstorm ideas-was
something that perhaps they could not implement?

a. Well, the dlacusaions that they had really
surrounded that they were making the part thias way
and any changes to that would be something that they
raally cculdn't handle. !

a. Did you discusa that with others at T.I.,
like Mr. Eerlnghause?

A. I think Mr. Beringhause may have been on
the phone line at the time.

Q. Have you asked for Texas Instruments since
then teo implement any of the suggestions that are
contained on the brainstorming liac?

A, Ne, we did not.

Q. Are they zontinuing to gell Ford brake
pressure awitches?

A. Yae, they are.

Q.  And to your knowledgse, has Ford changed
tﬁe upécificatinna te incorporate any of the ideas
on bralnatorming?

A. No, we have not.

2. Ia it because ~-- Well, after you heard

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-5125
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from Texas Instruments, did you provide this

information to your purchasing group?

A, Fhich Information?

a. The information contzined en wour
brainstorming.

aA. This list? No, we did not. We didn't

find that it was necessary, because again, the
switrcheg that we wera racéiving in 19254 and bheyond
cn the Town Car yzre'nnt experiencing the problem.

. Do you recall if Mr. MeGuirk reeponded to
the list in writing at any time?

A, I den't recazll that he reaponded in
writcing. | |

(Exhibit We. 37 marked.)

g. I'm looking at Exhibit 37. EBExhibit 37 ias
a responae from Mr. Mc@Quirk to you dated March the
13th.

A. I:st&nds corrvecktad.

Q. Okay. Ha did respond and he said, Fred
and team really like Che laac ané. It may ba a very
good solution ae it deals with a method of
dapowaring, which ie naar to our leoag-tarm input to
Ford, turn off the p&wer. Thia 1d depe 1f a fault
is detected. ©Did I read that right?

A. Well, thac's what's written. But again,
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this notes actually ko me. This note is internal to

f.I. Thig -- This note talks to the T.I. peaple to
de that. And it's guite interesting that tufning
coff the power to a defective switech 1s something
that T.I. would recommend becauase it takeg the --
the vision away from their part.

Q. Pid you receive a responee from

Mr., MoQuirk?

A. Again, I don't recall that.
G. You don't recall one way of the oLher?
A. I don't recall one way or another, but

thia clearly is not that reaponse.

o. Do you recall diacussing with Mr. MeGulrk
the lagt item on the liat: Add a ground fault
interruptar circuit to the pwitch circuit?

A. That was one of the things that we
identi -- that we the talk about. And as I eaid
before, wheﬁ we lcoked at whaﬁ it wquld take to add
a ground fault detectlon tha;tu the clrcuit, it was
nnﬁ the trivial matter that just ¢oming up with the
idaa would make it sgound.

Q. ' And that is an item that would've had to
have baen implamante& by Ford?

A. Not necessarily. That'a an item that

could've bean implamented by Taxas Instrument. I
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fact, that would've been the best place for it

because it was a -- a problem with thae Taxas
Instrument part that that would be sclving.

Q. How would you add thé grand {(sic) --
ground fault interrupter to thé circuit, where aon
your diaphragm? Show me where that would go.

A. You mean, on the echematic?

2. Yae, sir.

A. Back on Exhibit 87z
o, Yes. i
A. In fact, it would be best placed inside --

inside -- in -- 1lnside the switeh going to the

ground case af -- of che awitch (Indicating).
. o. Juat Bketech it out on how it would work?
Add ground fault interrupter --
A. I --1I --To tall.you the eruth, I don't
kitow what the inside of the ground fault detegtor

{Bic.l'inoka like at or how it's npirates. It would

just be something that would -- would be 1n --

inside thea awitch. There ia a complicated st of

eicher mechanical ar eiactranic designs that would
go with that .and I certainly caa't provide Lhat kind
of soclution fer you fight now today.

Q. You don't know what the circuit would

like?
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A, I do nok kpow what thalb circuit would look
like.

Q. Have you ever designed one?

A. Nc; I have not.

{Exhibit No. 38 marked.)
0. Let me hand you Exhihit 38 which loocks

like an E-Mail from somebedy, B. Peasge. and I

beliave you're copied on 1t. Do you aese that --
A, Yes.
2. Okay. In March -- This is dated

March 1&th, 159%. Was Bruce Pepage working for

Texas -- I mean, worklng for Ford at this time?

A. I believe he is.

a. And do you know what his tilitle was?

A. I balieve ha was an engineer.

Q. Okay. Now, ag I underetood it, he was not

on your taam?

A. _Cnrrt:t.

G; Engineer in what départment?

A. I.helisvejha wae in the AVF Chawmails
CGntrala_Departmint.

0. Ckay. A&nd dld ycu have someone from AVT
Chassis Control on yﬁur team?

A. Na, wa did net.

2. What type of engineer is Mr. Peasa?
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A, I'm not sure what type of emngineer he is.

Q. Do you know 1f he's an electrical
enginaar?

A. I don't know that.

g. Did you receive this E-Mally

A, Looka lika I dig. |

g. And he writes: In reviewing the apaed

control swltch issue, it occurs to me that the

ewitech might ba ispolated {(not groundad) te the

proporticnal ?alve 1f we were to put an insulating
epacer between the swirch and valve 1in the form ocf a
double threaded bushing. Did I reﬁd that correcktly?

A. Yes.

Q. How o0ld thism halp,_if at all? Did vyou
invastigate thias?

A. In the event that there's a fault in the

Spead control lyntam that causaes & ghort to the cage

of the -- in the -- the speed control deactivation

that was a short to the case of the -- of the

switch, if that was not connected to ground and

floating, then there wouldn't be on a current path

for -- for heat to build up.
Q. S0 if the awitch failled, this was a way of
praventing current o that you wouldn't have a fire?

aA. That's torrect.
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